
Meeting Instructions for the July 21, 2020, City Council Meeting: 

This meeting will be held in Council Chambers, 1001 11th Avenue, and it is open to the public. 

Residents are welcome to join us in Council Chambers to view or participate in the meeting, during 

Citizen Input or Public Hearings. Council Chambers are set up to meet social distancing requirements, 

and everyone is required to wear a mask when inside except when addressing Council. 

You can also view this Special Council Meeting by following the instructions below. 

 From your laptop or computer, click the following link or enter it manually into your Web

Browser: (http://greeleygov.com/government/council)
 Clicking the link above will take you to the City Council webpage.

 Once there, you will find a couple of link to the GTV8 livestream.

Citizen input and public comment for items appearing on this agenda as public hearings/quasi- 

judicial are valuable and welcome! 

If you choose to view the meeting using the live stream, you can still participate in the Citizen Input 

and Public Hearing portions of the meeting by utilizing any of the follow: 

Via email? – Submit to cityclerks@greeleygov.com 

All comments submitted this way will be read into the record at the appropriate points during this 

meeting in real time.  Comments can be submitted up to and throughout this meeting. 

Via traditional Mail? - Address to the Greeley City Clerk’s Office, 1000 10th Street, Greeley, CO 80631 

All written comments must be received no later than the day of the meeting. Again, written 

comments received by mail will also be read into the record in real time. 

In person in real time? 

As mentioned above, you are welcome to join us in Council Chambers to provide Citizen Input or 

participate in the Public Hearing during this meeting. 

The three options above are the only way for the public to submit comments or participate in the 

Citizen Input/Public Hearing Portions of the meeting. 

Please visit the City’s website at https://greeleygov.com/government/council to view and download 

the contents of the July 21, 2020, City Council Meeting. You are also welcome to call the City Clerk’s 

Office at 970-350-9740 with any special needs or questions that you may have. 

1

http://greeleygov.com/government/council
mailto:cityclerks@greeleygov.com
https://greeleygov.com/government/council


City Council Agenda 
July 21, 2020 at 6:00 PM 

1001 11th Avenue, City Center South, Greeley, CO 80631 

1. Call to Order

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll Call

4. Recognitions and Proclamations

5. Citizen Input

6. Approval of the Agenda

7. Reports from Mayor and Councilmembers

8. Initiatives from Mayor and Councilmembers

Consent Agenda 

The Consent Agenda is a meeting management tool to allow 

the City Council to handle several routine items with one action. 

Council or staff may request an item be “pulled” off the Consent 

Agenda and considered separately under the next agenda item 

in the order they were listed. 

9. Approval of the City Council Proceedings of July 7, 2020

10. Introduction and first reading of an Ordinance changing

the official zoning map of the City of Greeley, Colorado,

from R-H (Residential High Density) to PUD (Planned Unit

Development) for approximately 20.662 acres of property,

located west of North 35th Avenue and south of “C” Street,

known as the Stoneybrook Subdivision Filing No. 1 Block 1

Lot 4 Rezone

End of Consent Agenda 

11. Pulled Consent Agenda Items

12. A public hearing to consider a Final PUD Amendment to

allow for a 6,751 square foot building addition on a parcel

of property located at 1121 M Street

13. Strategic Housing Plan Progress/Update

14. COVID-19 Update

Mayor 

John Gates 

Councilmembers 

Tommy Butler 

Ward I 

Brett Payton 

Ward II 

Michael Fitzsimmons 

Ward III 

Dale Hall 

Ward IV 

Kristin Zasada 

At-Large 

Ed Clark 

At-Large 

A City Achieving 

Community Excellence 
Greeley promotes a 

healthy, diverse economy 

and high quality of life 

responsive to all its 

residents and 

neighborhoods, 

thoughtfully managing its 

human and natural 

resources in a manner 

that creates and sustains 

a safe, unique, vibrant 

and rewarding 

community in which to 

live, work, and play. 

2



15. Appointment of applicants to the Civil Service Commission, Commission on Disabilities, 

Construction Trades Advisory & Appeals Board, Downtown Development Authority, Judicial 

Review Board, Museum Board, and Youth Commission 

16. Scheduling of Meetings, Other Events 

17. Consideration of a motion authorizing the City Attorney to prepare any required resolutions, 

agreements, and ordinances to reflect action taken by the City Council at this meeting and 

at any previous meetings, and authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to sign all such resolutions, 

agreements and ordinances 

18. Adjournment 

3



Council Agenda Summary 
 

July 21, 2020 

Agenda Item Number 1 

 

Title 

Call to Order 

                                 

4



Council Agenda Summary 
 

July 21, 2020 

Agenda Item Number 2 

 

Title 

Pledge of Allegiance 

                                 

5



Council Agenda Summary 
 

July 21, 2020 

Agenda Item Number 3 

 

Title 

Roll Call 

Summary 

Mayor Gates 

Councilmember Butler 

Councilmember Payton 

Councilmember Hall 

Councilmember Fitzsimmons 

Councilmember Clark 

Councilmember Zasada 
                                 

6



Council Agenda Summary 
 

July 21, 2020 

Agenda Item Number 4 

 

Title 

Recognitions and Proclamations 

Summary 

Councilmember Clark will present the What’s Great about Greeley Report. 

 

Attachments 

July 21, 2020 What’s Great about Greeley Report 

 
                                 

7



Slide 1 

Greeley City Council
July 21, 2020
Councilmember Ed Clark

GreeleyGov.com

 

 

Slide 2 
“If you belittle what you 
have…it becomes less.
If you appreciate what

you have …
it becomes more.”

~Gelene McDonald

 

At each Council Meeting, we 
recognize the people, organizations 
and businesses that make Greeley 
Great. Tonight it’s my turn to 
announce the recognitions.  I’ll start 
with a quote, “If you belittle what you 
have, it becomes less.  If you 
appreciate what you have, it becomes 
more.”  With these announcements 
we are appreciating the good work of 
our residents, showing support for 
their efforts, and encouraging 
everyone to share the word that 
Greeley is Great. 
 
 
 

8



Slide 3 
America’s 100 Best Small Cities

Greeley Ranks #76

 

Greeley has been ranked #76 on 
Resonance Consultancy’s “America’s 
100 Best Small Cities” 2020 list.  The 
list uses a combination of statistical 
performance and qualitative 
evaluations by locals and visitors in 23 
areas grouped into six categories 
including place, people, programming, 
product, prosperity and promotion. 
 
 

Slide 4 
University of Northern Colorado

Scholar Athletes of the Year

 

University of Northern Colorado 
athletes get it done on the field…and 
in the classroom.   
Football player Luke Nelson and track 
and field athlete Kylie Chavez received 
the Scholar Athletes of the Year award 
from Big Sky.  Big Sky also honored 50 
UNC spring sport athletes with 
Academic All-Big Sky selections.  Five 
UNC women’s golf team members 
received the title of Women’s Golf 
Coaches Association All-American 
Scholar – a record number to receive 
the recognition. And, finally, the UNC 
swimming and diving team earned a 
spot on the College Swimming and 
Diving Coaches Association of America 
Scholar All-American Team list for the 
17th consecutive semester. 
 
 

9



Slide 5 
Leprino Foods

Dairy Sustainability Award

 

Congratulations to Leprino Foods Co. 
in Greeley for receiving a 2020 U.S. 
Dairy Sustainability Award for 
‘Outstanding Dairy Processing and 
Manufacturing’ from the Innovation 
Center for U.S. Dairy.  The award 
honors dairy farms, businesses and 
partnerships whose practices improve 
the well-being of people, animals and 
the planet. 
 
 

Slide 6 
North Range Behavioral Health

Program of the Year Award

 

HIPPY USA recognized North Range 
Behavioral Health’s Family Connects 
HIPPY program as “Program of the 
Year.” The award is given biannually.  
  
 
 

Slide 7 
Wiley Roots

Craft Beer Marketing Crushie Award

 

Congratulations to Wiley Roots 
Brewing Company for receiving a 
platinum award for their “Imperial 
Somethin’ Got Played In the Mail-Six 
Pack Board Game” craft beer 
packaging at the Craft Beer Marketing 
Crushie Awards. 
 
 

10



Slide 8 

Greeley City Council - 2020   

GreeleyGov.com

 

And that’s What’s Great about 
Greeley. 
 
 

 

11



Council Agenda Summary 
 

July 21, 2020 

Agenda Item Number 5 

 

Title 

Citizen Input 

Summary 

During this 15 minute portion of the meeting, anyone may address the Council on 

any item of City Business appropriate for Council consideration that is not already 

listed on this evening’s agenda. Individual comments read into the record will be 

limited to 3 minutes and must include the name and address of the person 

submitting the comments for the record. 
                                 

12



Council Agenda Summary 
 

July 21, 2020 

Agenda Item Number 6 

 

Title 

Approval of the Agenda 

                                 

13



Council Agenda Summary 
 

July 21, 2020 

Agenda Item Number 7 

Title 

Reports from Mayor and Councilmembers 

Summary 

During this portion of the meeting any Councilmember may offer announcements or 

reports on recent events and happenings.  These reports should be a summary of the 

Councilmember’s attendance at assigned board/commission meetings and should 

include key highlights and points that may require additional decision and discussion 

by the full Council at a future time.   
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

14



Council Agenda Summary 
 

July 21, 2020 

Agenda Item Number 8 

 

Title 

Initiatives from Mayor and Councilmembers 

Summary 

During this portion of the meeting any Councilmember may bring before the Council 

any business that the member feels should be deliberated upon by the Council.  These 

matters need not be specifically listed on the Agenda, but formal action on such 

matters shall be deferred until a subsequent Council meeting. 

 

Initiatives will generally fall into three categories: 

 

1) A policy item for Council deliberation and direction for a future Worksession, 

Committee meeting, or regular/special Council meeting; 

 

2) A request to the City Manager for information or research; 

 

3) A request involving administrative processes or procedures. 

 

At the close of this portion of the meeting, the Mayor will confirm Council’s consensus 

that the individual requests be pursued. 

 

Attachments 

Status Report of Council Initiatives and Related Information 

                                 

15



 

 

Greeley City Council 
 

Status Report of Council Initiatives 
 

 
 

Council Request 

Council Meeting, 

Worksession, or 

Committee Meeting Date 

Requested 

Status or Disposition 

(After completion, item is shown one 
time as completed and then removed.) 

Assigned to: 

Councilmember Butler requested that the Mayor, City 
Council, and the City’s Executive Team participate in 
racial sensitivity training. 

June 16, 2020 An item has been scheduled for 
the July 28th Worksession to 
discuss possibilities/topics for 
training. 

Becky Safarik 

Councilmember Clark requested that staff look into 
potentially having Council take different police 
trainings/ride alongs (which include implicit bias, de-
escalation, shoot/don’t shoot, etc.) in addition to the 
racial sensitivity training. 

July 7, 2020 An item has been scheduled for 
the July 28th Worksession to 
discuss possibilities/topics for 
training. 

Becky Safarik 

Councilmember Clark requested that the Mayor and 
Council receive a tutorial on Open Records Law. 

July 7, 2020   

Councilmember Clark requested to have a meeting with 
City Attorney Doug Marek to receive information from 
the City Attorney’s Office regarding the City Attorney’s 
Office role/who they represent as well as a discussion of 
communication issues and timeliness of response 
between the City Attorney’s Office and Councilmember 
Clark. 

July 7, 2020  Doug Marek 

 

16



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Consent Agenda 
July 21, 2020 

The Consent Agenda is a meeting management tool to allow the City Council to handle several 

routine items with one action. 

Once the Clerk has read each Consent Agenda item into the record, along with Council’s 

recommended action, Council or staff may request the item be “pulled” off the Consent 

Agenda and considered separately under the next agenda item in the order they were listed. 

The Consent Agenda includes Items No. 9 through 10 and their recommended actions. 

Council’s Recommended Action 

To approve Items No. _____ through _____ or 

To approve Items No. _____ through _____ with the exceptions of No.(s) _____ 

17



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Council Agenda Summary 
July 21, 2020 

Agenda Item Number  9

Key Staff Contact: Cheryl Aragon, Interim City Clerk, 350-9743 

Title: 

Approval of the City Council Proceedings of July 7, 2020 

Summary: 

A meeting of the City Council was held on July 7, 2020, in Council’s Chambers located 

at 1001 11th Avenue. 

Decision Options: 

1) 1.  To approve the proceedings as presented; or

2) 2.  Amend the proceedings if amendments or corrections are needed, and approve

3) as amended.

Council’s Recommended Action:  

A motion to approve the City Council proceedings as presented. 

Attachments: 
July 7, 2020 Proceedings 

18



82 
 

City of Greeley, Colorado 
CITY COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS 

July 7, 2020 
 
1. Call to Order 
 
Mayor John Gates called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m., in the Council’s Chambers at the City Center 
South Campus, 1001 11th Avenue. 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Mayor Gates led the Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag. 
 
3. Roll Call 
 
Jerry Harvey, Assistant City Clerk, called the roll.  Those present were Mayor John Gates and 
Councilmembers Tommy Butler, Ed Clark, Michael Fitzsimmons, Dale Hall, Brett Payton and Kristin 
Zasada.   
 
4. Recognitions and Proclamations 
 
Councilmember Butler presented the What’s Great About Greeley Report. 
 
Mayor Gates also spoke about the passing of former Councilmember Carlos Leal and shared some 
thoughts and memories. Carmen Whitehead, Councilmember Leal’s granddaughter, and Val Leal-
Whitehead, Councilmember Leal’s oldest daughter, both thanked Council and shared memories and 
thoughts. 
 
5. Citizen Input 
 
Taylor Sullivan, Greeley resident, deferred her time to Sherrie Peif. 
 
Sherrie Peif, Evans resident, spoke briefly on the passing of former Councilmember Leal. She then spoke 
about her grandmother’s immigration story and her own personal stories about growing up poor. Ms. Peif 
expressed her desire that the sensitivity training Council is about to receive needs to cover all cultures, 
including white culture. She concluded by noting that she cares about the security of children and the 
community, adding that she is proud of the Greeley Police Department and that the City should not defund 
the police. 
 
Rick Reeser, Greeley resident, spoke about the need for law and order but not repression. He added that 
he does not support defunding the Greeley Police Department. 
 
Steve Teets, Greeley resident, thanked Council for allowing Greeley-Evans Transit to run during this 
pandemic. He also spoke in support of Councilmember Zasada’s right to freedom of speech. 
 
Samuel Johnson, Greeley resident, explained that he is new to Greeley but sees that there are issues 
specifically regarding race and policing. He added that he wants funding from the Police Department to 
go to programs that can actually help community, and he spoke about the issue of lack of diversity on 
Council. 
 

19



83 
 

Carl Alm, Weld County resident, spoke about his experience as a former police officer and spoke about 
the good tools and good training Greeley Police Officers receive. He expressed the need to trust the Police. 
 
Gavin Hamilton, Greeley resident, expressed his concern that sensitivity training is not enough. He asked 
Council how they are holding themselves accountable and what they are doing for vulnerable populations 
within the community. He also invited Council to attend meetings related to vulnerable populations.  
 
Mayor Gates concluded this item by responding to emails Council had received regarding fireworks. 
 
6. Approval of Agenda 
 
The agenda was approved after noting two handouts. The first was for the addition of a new item, 21A on 
the consent agenda, and the other was for additional materials for Item 24. 
 
Becky Safarik, Assistant City Manager, also reminded Council and the public of the Human Relations 
Commission community forum on race in the community being held on July 15th at 6:00 p.m. via Zoom 
Meetings. 
 
7. Reports from Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
Councilmember Butler spoke about his attendance and speech at the Naturalization Ceremony on July 4th. 
 
8. Initiatives from Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
Councilmember Clark requested that the Mayor and Council receive a tutorial on Open Records Law. 
 
In addition, he requested to have a meeting with City Attorney Doug Marek to receive information from 
the City Attorney’s Office regarding the City Attorney’s Office role/who they represent as well as a 
discussion of communication issues and timeliness of response between the City Attorney’s Office and 
Councilmember Clark. 
 
He also requested that staff look into potentially having Council take different police trainings/ride alongs 
(which include implicit bias, de-escalation, shoot/don’t shoot, etc.) in addition to the racial sensitivity 
training. 
 
Ms. Safarik noted that there is a future Worksession scheduled to discuss sensitivity training options and 
topics. 
 
Consensus was reached by Council on all of Councilmember Clark’s petitions. 
 

* * * * Consent Agenda * * * * 
 

9. Approval of the Special City Council Proceedings of June 9, 2020 
 
The Council action recommended was to approve the Proceedings. 
 
10. Acceptance of the Report of the June 9, 2020, City Council Worksession 
 
The Council action recommended was to accept the Report.  
City Council Proceedings                                                       2                                                                            July 7, 2020 

20



84 
 

11. Acceptance of the Report of the June 12, 2020, Council Briefing: COVID-19 Update 
 
The Council action recommended was to accept the Report.  
 
12. Approval of the City Council Proceedings of June 16, 2020 
 
The Council action recommended was to approve the Proceedings. 
 
13. Approval of the Special City Council Proceedings of June 23, 2020 
 
The Council action recommended was to approve the Proceedings. 
 
14. Acceptance of the Report of the June 23, 2020, City Council Worksession 
 
The Council action recommended was to accept the Report.  
 
15. Consideration of Amendment 2 to the Citizen Participation Plan 
 
The Council action recommended was to Accept Amendment 2 to the Citizen Participation Plan. 
 
16. Consideration of a resolution of the City of Greeley Council authorizing the City to enter 

into Amendment No.5 of an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Colorado Department 
of Transportation to update the total funding for construction for the 10th Street access 
control and roadway improvements project between 23rd Avenue and 35th Avenue 

 
The Council action recommended was to adopt the resolution.  (Resolution No. 32, 2020) 
 
17. Consideration of a resolution of the City of Greeley Council authoring the City to enter into 

an Intergovernmental Agreement with the City of Evans for a roadway improvement 
project on 47th Avenue 

 
The Council action recommended was to adopt the resolution.  (Resolution No. 33, 2020) 
 
18. Consideration of a resolution of the City of Greeley authorizing the City to enter into an 

Intergovernmental Agreement between the City of Greeley and the Colorado Department 
of Transportation for design of a interchange at Highway 34 Bypass and 35th Avenue  

 
The Council action recommended was to adopt the resolution.  (Resolution No. 34, 2020) 
 
19. Consideration of a resolution of the City of Greeley authorizing the City to enter into an 

Intergovernmental Agreement between the City of Greeley and the Colorado Department 
of Transportation for design of a interchange at Highway 34 Bypass and 47th Avenue  

 
The Council action recommended was to adopt the resolution.  (Resolution No. 35, 2020) 
 
20. Consideration of a resolution of the City of Greeley Council authorizing the City to enter 

into an Intergovernmental agreement with the Colorado Department of Transportation for 
the Greeley Transportation Master Plan Project 

 
City Council Proceedings                                                       3                                                                            July 7, 2020 

21



85 
 

The Council action recommended was to adopt the resolution.  (Resolution No. 36, 2020) 
 
21. Consideration of a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Greeley, Colorado 

authorizing the City to enter into a closure and removal agreement with Union Pacific 
Railroad for 6th Street 

 
The Council action recommended was to adopt the resolution.  (Resolution No. 37, 2020) 
 
21A. Consideration of a resolution appointing Anissa N. Hollingshead to the position of City 

Clerk 
 
The Council action recommended was to adopt the resolution.  (Resolution No. 38, 2020) 
 

* * * * End of Consent Agenda * * * * 
 

Councilmember Payton moved, seconded by Councilmember Butler to approve items 9-14 and items 16-
21A on the Consent Agenda and their recommended actions.  The motion carried:  7-0 
 
22. Pulled consent agenda items 
 

15. Consideration of Amendment 2 to the Citizen Participation Plan 
 
Benjamin Snow, Economic Health & Housing Director, briefly discussed the plan and the need for the 
plan. 
 
Councilmember Clark expressed concern that some may not be able to participate or make their voices 
heard with this new process. 
 
Mr. Snow explained that there were issues with attendance at public meetings before the pandemic, so they 
thought it would be worth changing to virtual meetings. He noted that traditional methods are still being 
used to notice the public, adding that they are just switching to virtual meetings and public input. 
 
Ms. Safarik added that staff is in contact with member of vulnerable populations to ensure that they are 
aware of the changes in procedure. 
 
Mr. Snow added that he will report back to Council later this year to show how well the new processes are 
going. 
 
Councilmember Clark moved, seconded by Councilmember Zasada to accept Amendment 2 to the Citizen 
Participation Plan. The motion carried (7-0) 
 
23. Public hearing and final reading of an ordinance amending Chapter 13.44 of the Municipal 

Code of the City of Greeley relating to Local Improvement Districts 
 
Sean Chambers, Water & Sewer Director, provided background on Local Improvement Districts (LIDs) 
as well as background of Greeley’s Code as it relates to LIDs along with the reasons for the recommended 
changes. He continued by describing the current limitation within the Code relating to LIDs; provided 
different examples related to LIDs within Greeley; and briefly discussed the proposed revisions to the 
sections of Greeley’s Code related to LIDs. 
City Council Proceedings                                                       4                                                                            July 7, 2020 

22



86 
 

In response to a question from Councilmember Payton, Mr. Chambers explained that consultants will be 
reviewing impact fees. 
 
Councilmember Butler inquired as to whether affordable housing developers were consulted. Mr. 
Chambers explained that they have been consulted and that they support the concept. He added that their 
current properties are not within any LIDs. 
 
In response to a question from Councilmember Clark, Mr. Chambers explained that the costs associated 
with LIDs are included in the price of homes when they are purchased. 
 
Councilmember Payton inquired about how an incoming homeowner would know they are in a LID. Mr. 
Chambers explained that a homeowner does not have any obligations to the LID when they move in. He 
reiterated that the costs associated with the LID are paid during the building permit process and that cost 
is passed on to the home buyer in the cost of the home or property. 
 
Mayor Gates opened the public hearing at 7:04 p.m., and no comments were offered. 
 
Councilmember Payton moved, seconded by Councilmember Hall to adopt the ordinance and publish 
with reference to title only.  The motion carried: 7-0 (Ordinance No. 15, 2020) 
 
24. COVID-19 Update 
 
Dan Frazen, Emergency Manager, provided an update on current number of cases, total fatalities related 
to COVID-19, and total hospitalization related to COVID-19. He also provided an update on the personal 
isolation facilities at Bonnel and The Ranch in Loveland. He concluded by noting that personal protective 
equipment supplies are doing great; provided an update on current testing sites in Greeley; and explained 
that the City is still below the recommended 5% of positivity. 
 
In response to questions from Councilmember Butler, Mr. Frazen explained that he was not sure what 
caused the spike in tests at the Aims Community College testing site but that he would look into it and 
follow up with Council. He added that the wait time for COVID-19 test results varies depending on which 
lab conducts the test, but it typically takes between 24 hours and 4 days depending on the lab. 
25. Scheduling of meetings, other events 
 
There were no additional meeting or events scheduled. 
 
26. Consideration of a motion authorizing the City Attorney to prepare any required 

resolutions, agreements, and ordinances to reflect action taken by the City Council at this 
meeting and at any previous meetings, and authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to sign 
all such resolutions, agreements, and ordinances 

 
Councilmember Payton moved, seconded by Councilmember Zasada to approve the above authorizations, 
and the motion carried: 7-0 
 
27. Adjournment 
 
There being no further business to come before the Council, Mayor Gates adjourned the meeting at 7:13 
p.m. 
 
City Council Proceedings                                                       5                                                                            July 7, 2020 

23



87 
 

 
 
 

___________________________________ 
John Gates, Mayor 

 
___________________________________ 
Jerry Harvey, Assistant City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
City Council Proceedings                                                       6                                                                            July 7, 2020 

24



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Council Agenda Summary 
July 21, 2020 

Agenda Item Number 10

Key Staff Contact: Brad Mueller, Community Development Director, 970-350-9786 

 Caleb Jackson, Planner, 970-350-9876 

Title: 

Introduction and first reading of an Ordinance changing the official zoning map of the 

City of Greeley, Colorado, from R-H (Residential High Density) to PUD (Planned Unit 

Development) for approximately 20.662 acres of property, located west of North 35th 

Avenue and south of “C” Street, known as the Stoneybrook Subdivision Filing No. 1 Block 

1 Lot 4 Rezone 

Summary: 

The City of Greeley is considering a request to rezone a 20.6-acre tract from R-H 

(Residential High Density) to PUD (Planned Unit Development). The subject site is 

located west of N. 35th Avenue and south of “C” Street.  If the rezoning request is 

approved, the application seeks to establish a Preliminary PUD to allow for a mobile 

home community.  

The Planning Commission will consider this request on July 14, 2020. 

Fiscal Impact: 
Does this item create a fiscal impact on the City of Greeley? No 

If yes, what is the initial, or, onetime impact? 

What is the annual impact? 

What fund of the City will provide Funding? 

What is the source of revenue within the fund? 

Is there grant funding for this item? N/A 

If yes, does this grant require a match? 

Is this grant onetime or ongoing? 

Additional Comments: 

Legal Issues:   

Consideration of this matter is a quasi-judicial process. 

Other Issues and Considerations: 

None noted. 

25



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Applicable Council Priority and Goal: 

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Development Code standards. 

 

Decision Options:  

1) Introduce the ordinance as presented; or 

2) Amend the ordinance and introduce as amended; or 

3) Deny the ordinance; or 

4) Continue consideration of the ordinance to a date certain. 

Council’s Recommended Action:  

A motion to introduce the ordinance and schedule the public hearing and final 

reading for August 4, 2020. 

Attachments: 

Ordinance 

Vicinity Map 

Planning Commission Summary (Staff Report) (July 14, 2020) [Attachments G – L 

omitted and available upon request] 

 

26



 

 

 CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 
 

 ORDINANCE NO. ____, 2020 
 

 CASE NO. ZON2020-0008 
 
 
AN ORDINANCE CHANGING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
GREELEY, COLORADO, FROM R-H (RESIDENTIAL HIGH DENSITY) TO PUD (PLANNED 
UNIT DEVELOPMENT) FOR 20.662 ACRES OF PROPERTY, LOCATED WEST OF NORTH 
35TH AVENUE AND SOUTH OF “C” STREET, KNOWN AS THE STONEYBROOK 
SUBDIVISION FILING NO. 1 BLOCK 1 LOT 4 REZONE 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF GREELEY, COLORADO: 
 
Section 1.  The following described property located in the City of Greeley is hereby changed from 
the zoning district referred to as R-H (Residential High Density) to PUD (Planned Unit 
Development) zoning for 20.662 acres of property, in the City of Greeley, County of Weld, State 
of Colorado: 
 

See attached legal description 
 

Section 2.  The boundaries of the pertinent zoning districts as shown on the official zoning map 
are hereby changed so as to accomplish the above-described zoning changes, and the Mayor and 
City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to sign and attest an entry which shall be made on 
the official zoning map to reflect this change. 
 
Section 3.  This ordinance shall become effective five (5) days after its final publication as provided 
by the Greeley City Charter. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED, THIS _____ DAY OF 
_______________________, 2020. 
 
ATTEST:   THE CITY OF GREELEY 
 
 
 
________________________________ ___________________________________ 
City Clerk   Mayor 
 
 
  

27



 

 

Legal Description 
 
LOT 4, BLOCK 1, STONEYBROOK SUBDIVISION FILING NO. 1, CITY OF GREELEY, 
COUNTY OF WELD, STATE OF COLORADO AS RECORDED IN THE OFFICE OF THE 
WELD COUNTY CLERK AND RECORDER ON JULY 7, 1999 AT RECEPTION NUMBER 
2710177. 
 
SAID DESCRIBED PARCEL CONTAINS 20.662 ACRES, MORE OR LESS (±). 
 

28



 

VICINITY MAP 

 

SUBJECT SITE 

N
 3

5
th

 A
ve

n
u

e 

C Street 

29



 
 

 

 

Planning Commission Summary  
ZON2020-0008 & PUD2019-0004 
July 14, 2020 Page 1 
 
 

 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION SUMMARY 
 
ITEMS: Rezone property from R-H (Residential High Density) to PUD 

(Planned Unit Development) and a Preliminary PUD 
 
FILE NUMBER: ZON2020-0008 & PUD2019-0004  
 
PROJECT: Stoneybrook Subdivision Filing No. 1, Block 1, Lot 4 Rezone & 

Preliminary PUD  
 
LOCATION: West of N 35th Avenue, South of C Street 
   
APPLICANT: Bob Eck of Stoneybrook 234 LLC  
 
CASE PLANNER: Caleb Jackson, AICP | Planner II 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION HEARING DATE:   July 14, 2020 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION FUNCTION: 
The Planning Commission shall consider the staff report, along with testimony and comments 
made by the applicant and the public and shall then make recommendations to the City Council 
regarding the applications in the form of a finding based on the review criteria in Sections 
18.30.050(c)(3) and 18.32.040(b) of the Development Code.      
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The City of Greeley is considering a request from Bob Eck of Stoneybrook 234 LLC to rezone 
approximately 20.7 acres of land from R-H (Residential High Density) to PUD (Planned Unit 
Development) and establish a Preliminary PUD allowing a mobile home community consisting of 
approximately 142 dwelling units located at the southwest corner of N 35th Avenue at C Street.  
 
A. REQUEST 
The applicant is requesting approval to rezone approximately 20.7 acres located at the southwest 
corner of N 35th Avenue at C Street (see Attachments A & B) from R-H (Residential High Density) 
to PUD (Planned Unit Development) and establish a Preliminary PUD allowing a mobile home 
community consisting of approximately 142 dwelling units. A Final PUD would be required within 
3 years of the date of approval of a Preliminary PUD. 
 
The proposed Preliminary PUD (see Attachment C) consists of a single lot with approximately 
142 sites for mobile homes served by private streets. Open space, trail connections, and amenities 

30



 
 

 

 

Planning Commission Summary  
ZON2020-0008 & PUD2019-0004 
July 14, 2020 Page 2 
 
 

 

 

are incorporated into the project to allow for pedestrian connectivity, outdoor activity, and access 
to the Broadview Acres Trail being extended by the City adjacent to the site with construction 
beginning in Fall 2020. Vehicular access is proposed from C Street.  
 
As highlighted by the Strategic Housing Plan in 2019, the base code standards for mobile home 
communities are outdated and prohibitive. As such, staff recommended that the applicant pursue 
a PUD to establish modern standards that facilitate development of the mobile home community 
while ensuring a high-quality development. Identified deviations from typical code standards are 
outlined on Page 3 of the Preliminary PUD (see Attachment C).  
 
B. STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Approval 
 
C. LOCATION Abutting Zoning/Land Use: 

 North: R-MH (Residential Mobile Home Community)  
 South: C-L (Commercial Low Intensity), I-M (Industrial Medium 

Intensity), & R-L (Residential Low Density) 
East: R-MH (Residential Mobile Home Community) 

 West: R-MH (Residential Mobile Home Community) 
  
 Site Characteristics: 
 The site is presently undeveloped and slopes northward with the highline 

being along the south property line adjacent to the Greeley #3 Ditch. A 
small section on the north side of the property, where C Street is located, 
sits within the 100-year floodplain. 

 
 Surrounding Land Uses:   

North:   Retention Pond 
South:  Greeley #3 Ditch, Vet Hospital, Landscaping Contractor, Fire 
Training Facility 

 East:   Mobile Home Community 
 West:    Mobile Home Community 
 

D. BACKGROUND 
The subject property was annexed into the City of Greeley as part of the Putnam Farm 
Annexation in 1985 by Ordinance No. 85. The subject property was zoned R-3 (Multi-Family 
Residential) upon annexation by Ordinance No. 97, 1985. With the adoption of the Zoning Code 
of 1998, the R-3 Zoning District transitioned to the R-H Zoning District. The site has remained 
undeveloped without concrete development proposals prior to this request.     

31



 
 

 

 

Planning Commission Summary  
ZON2020-0008 & PUD2019-0004 
July 14, 2020 Page 3 
 
 

 

 

E. APPROVAL CRITERIA 
Rezone Criteria:  
In accordance with §18.30.050, the following criteria, as applicable, should be used to evaluate the 
rezoning request:  
 
a. Has the area changed, or is it changing to such a degree that it is in the public interest to 
rezone the subject property to encourage development or redevelopment of the area? 
 

Staff Comment: The subject area has changed since the initial zoning in 1985, with the 
successful completion of a mobile home community to the west of the subject site, and 
additional development in the vicinity such as the fire training facility. Rezoning is in the public 
interest to encourage development of the subject site, and facilitate development of 
manufactured home communities as described in the Strategic Housing Plan. 
 
The proposed request complies with this criterion. 

 
b. Has the existing zoning been in place for at least fifteen (15) years without substantial 
development resulting and does the existing zoning appear to be obsolete, given development 
trends? 
 

Staff Comment: The existing R-H zoning has been in place since annexation in 1985. The 
current zoning appears obsolete considering that the site remains vacant, while adjacent sites 
successfully operate as mobile home communities. 
 
The request complies with this criterion. 

 
c. Are there clerical or technical errors to correct? 
 

Staff Comment: The proposal is not related to correcting clerical or technical errors. 
 
This criterion is not applicable. 

 
d. Are there detrimental environmental conditions, such as flood plains, presence of 
irrigation ditches, inadequate drainage, slopes, unstable soils, etc., that may affect future 
development of this site and which may not have been considered during the original zoning 
of the property? 
 

Staff Comment: The 100-year floodplain skirts the northern edge of the property and some steep 
slopes are present at the southern edge of the property; however, these factors do not impact 

32



 
 

 

 

Planning Commission Summary  
ZON2020-0008 & PUD2019-0004 
July 14, 2020 Page 4 
 
 

 

 

development of the bulk of the site and were present during the consideration of the original 
zoning. 

 
This criterion is not applicable. 

 
e. Is the proposed rezoning necessary in order to provide land for a community related use 
which was not anticipated at the time of adoption of the City's Comprehensive Plan; or have 
the policies of the City changed to the extent that a rezoning is warranted? 
 

Staff Comment: The proposal is not associated with a community related use. However, the 
Imagine Greeley Comprehensive Plan adopted subsequent to the existing zoning identifies the 
subject site for Suburban Neighborhood, which generally envisions residential densities more in 
line with the proposed zoning than those possible if the site was developed with multi-family 
dwellings as permitted by the current zoning. Furthermore, the Strategic Housing Plan was 
adopted in 2019 that encourages the facilitation of manufactured home communities.   
 
The proposal complies with this criterion. 

 
f. What is the potential impact of the proposed rezoning upon the immediate neighborhood 
and the City as a whole (including potential noise and environmental impacts, visual impacts, 
the provision of City services such as police, fire, water, sewer, street and pedestrian systems 
and parks and recreation facilities)? 

 
Staff Comment: The proposal would generally present lesser impacts to the neighborhood than 
if the property were to be developed with multi-family dwellings, as allowed under the present 
zoning. The proposed mobile home community is consistent with the area, being adjacent to two 
existing mobile home communities. Noise generation is anticipated to be comparable to existing 
adjacent developments, and adverse visual impacts are not anticipated, especially with the 
proposed landscaping provided along the public thoroughfare adjacent to the site, N 35th Avenue 
(see Attachment C). No adverse environmental impacts are expected, and the ecological impacts 
are proposed to be mitigated per the biologist’s recommendations (see Attachment G). 
 
Impacts to the City services such as police, fire, water, sewer, street and pedestrian systems, and 
parks and recreation facilities are expected to be less intense than if the property were to be 
developed with multi-family dwellings as allowed by the current zoning. Adequate services 
currently exist to support the proposed development, and additional infrastructure will soon be 
constructed in the immediate vicinity. Upcoming capital projects include widening N 35th 
Avenue, the provision of non-potable lines, and the extension of the Broadview Acres Trail.  
 
The proposal complies with this criterion. 

33



 
 

 

 

Planning Commission Summary  
ZON2020-0008 & PUD2019-0004 
July 14, 2020 Page 5 
 
 

 

 

 
g. Is there clear and convincing evidence that the proposed rezoning will be consistent with 
the policies and goals of the City's Comprehensive Plan and comply with applicable zoning 
overlay requirements? 
 

Staff Comment: The proposal is consistent with the Imagine Greeley Comprehensive Plan and 
its sub-elements, specifically the Strategic Housing Plan regarding the facilitation of developing 
manufactured home communities. The only overlay on the subject property is related to the 100-
year floodplain which does not impact development of the site as proposed. The proposal is 
supported by the following specific Imagine Greeley Comprehensive Plan goals and objectives: 
 
Goal ED-3: Attract and maintain an employed, skilled, and adaptable workforce. 

   
Objective ED-3.1 Diverse Workforce  
Provide diverse economic opportunities, jobs, and housing and transportation 
options to ensure that Greeley is attractive to and inclusive of a diverse workforce. 

 
Goal GC-1: Manage growth effectively. 
 

Objective GC-1.2 Form of Growth  
Encourage a compact urban form over sprawl or leap-frog development. 

 
Objective GC-1.3 Adequate Public Facilities  
Restrict development to the Adequate Public Facilities Area (APFA) except where 
the developer provides the equivalent level, or cash-in-lieu at a rate determined by 
the City, to install infrastructure that would otherwise be provided by the City. 

 
Objective GC-1.6 Transitions to Parks and Open Lands  
Ensure that new development abutting land that is intended to remain undeveloped, 
such as parks, open lands, environmentally sensitive areas, and agricultural land 
with conservation easements, provides for transitions in uses and intensity that 
mitigate impacts on these adjacent areas. 

 
Goal GC-2: Promote a balanced mix and distribution of land uses. 
 

Objective GC-2.2 Jobs/Housing Balance  
Support zoning and development patterns that expand opportunities for people who 
live in Greeley to also work in Greeley (or vice versa). 
 

34



 
 

 

 

Planning Commission Summary  
ZON2020-0008 & PUD2019-0004 
July 14, 2020 Page 6 
 
 

 

 

Goal GC-3: Promote new development, infrastructure investments, and public improvements that 
enhance the character of the community. 
 

Objective GC-3.4 Tree City  
Reinforce the community’s image as a “Tree City” by promoting the establishment 
and maintenance of tree-lined travel corridors throughout the community, taking 
into consideration water use, conservation strategies, and the natural environment. 

 
Goal GC-6: Maintain and enhance the character and inter-connectivity of Greeley’s 
neighborhoods. 
 

Objective GC-6.2 Neighborhood Connectivity  
Promote design standards and practices that improve connectivity for all modes 
between neighborhoods and adjacent neighborhoods, centers, corridors, and areas. 

 
Goal HO-2: Encourage a broad diversity of housing options.  
 

Objective HO-2.1 Diversity in New Development  
Encourage a variety of housing types, sizes, styles, and price-points of housing units 
within new residential projects or subdivisions. Ensure that Greeley has 
neighborhoods and/or development sites available and attractive to its desired 
workforce, including higher-end housing for executives and other high-paid 
workers. 

 
Goal NR-1: Protect, conserve, maintain, and improve the quality and quantity of water available 
to Greeley.  
 

Objective NR-1.4 Non-Potable Water  
Assertively promote the use of non-potable water for irrigation as a viable and 
efficient alternative to treated water. 

 
Goal NR-3: Demonstrate stewardship of the environment.  
 

Objective NR-3.7 Urban Forest  
Protect, maintain, and expand the urban forest within and around the city. 

 
Goal TM-1: Develop and maintain an accessible, integrated, safe, and efficient transportation 
system.  
 

 

35



 
 

 

 

Planning Commission Summary  
ZON2020-0008 & PUD2019-0004 
July 14, 2020 Page 7 
 
 

 

 

Objective TM-1.2 Pedestrian Movements  
Ensure pedestrian movement and accessibility is considered in the design and 
construction of all public and private development projects. Ample and safe 
sidewalks and other pedestrian pathways within and between developments should 
be provided. 

 
Goal TM-3: Ensure that land use and transportation decisions, strategies, and investments are 
coordinated and complementary.  
 

Objective TM-3.2 Supportive Development  
Ensure that all proposed development projects demonstrate the ability to 
accommodate pedestrian and bicycle travel. 

 
The proposal complies with this criterion. 

 
h. What is the potential impact of the proposed rezoning upon an approved zoning suitability 
plan for the property? 
 

Staff Comment: The property can be successfully developed as shown on the Zoning Suitability 
Plan (see Attachment F).  

 
The proposal complies with this criterion. 

 
PUD Criteria 
In reaching recommendations and decisions as to rezoning land to the PUD district, the Planning 
Commission and the City Council shall apply the following standards in addition to the standards 
and procedures of Section l 8.30.050 which are outlined above applicable to the rezoning of land: 
 
i. The area of a proposed PUD shall be of substantial size to permit its design and 
development as a cohesive unit fulfilling the stated purpose of these regulations and to 
establish the PUD as a meaningful part of the larger community. Each proposed PUD shall 
therefore be evaluated as to its adequacy in size with respect to both the nature and character 
of its internal design and to its specific location within the City. The minimum size of a PUD 
to be considered for establishment shall be two (2) acres. 
 
Staff Comment: The proposal meets this requirement. The area of the proposed PUD is 
approximately 20.7 acres.  
 
j. PUD proposal shall be found to be consistent with all applicable elements of the Land Use 
Chapter of the City's adopted Comprehensive Plan with respect to its proposed internal 

36



 
 

 

 

Planning Commission Summary  
ZON2020-0008 & PUD2019-0004 
July 14, 2020 Page 8 
 
 

 

 

design and use and its relationship to adjacent areas and the City as a whole before it may 
be zoned as a PUD.  
 
Staff Comment: The Land Use Guidance Map identifies the site for Suburban Neighborhood and 
envisions densities typically between 2 and 5 dwelling units per acre with up to 10 units per acre 
in some locations. The proposed PUD nets approximately 6.9 units per acre, which is consistent 
with the Suburban Neighborhood classification and is less dense than could be expected with 
multi-family development permitted by the current R-H zoning.  
 
F.  PHYSICAL SITE CHARACTERISTICS 
 

HAZARDS 
Some steeps slopes are located on the southern edge of the site that are proposed to be 
incorporated into the landscape buffer. An unhealthy cottonwood tree was removed from the 
site. No additional hazards are present impacting the proposed development.   
 
WILDLIFE 
The subject site is identified on the Areas of Ecological Significance Map as an area with 
potentially significant natural features that could be moderately impacted by development. The 
applicant provided a biologist’s report (see Attachment G) in accordance with §18.48.050(b) 
of the Development Code that identified appropriate practices to mitigate the impact of 
development on the ecological value of the site especially regarding the black-tailed prairie 
dog colony and a raptor’s nest on the site. The tree containing the inactive raptor’s nest was 
unhealthy and removed outside of the nesting season in compliance with the recommendations 
and the prairie dog colony cannot be removed during the burrowing owl nesting season of May 
15 to September 15, without professional confirmation concluding no burrowing owl activity 
is occurring.  
 
FLOODPLAIN 
A small portion of the property is located within the l00-year floodplain, according to the 
adopted Federal Emergency Management Administration (FEMA) flood data. The floodplain 
skirts the northern edge of the site, along C Street, and should not impact the proposal. The 
applicant has diligently consulted with the City of Greeley’s Floodplain Administrator and has 
adequately addressed floodplain standards.   
 
DRAINAGE AND EROSION 
Increases in stormwater flows from development are proposed to be addressed by an on-site 
detention and water quality pond at the northeast corner of the property (see Attachment I). 
Erosion control devices are required and are reviewed by the City to ensure that best 
management practices are utilized as the project progresses (see Attachment H). 

37



 
 

 

 

Planning Commission Summary  
ZON2020-0008 & PUD2019-0004 
July 14, 2020 Page 9 
 
 

 

 

TRANSPORTATION 
The applicant proposes automobile access to the site via C Street. The applicant continues to 
coordinate with Public Works Department as the City intends to widen N 35th Avenue adjacent 
to the proposal, including a roundabout at C Street in 2021. The site is directly served by a 
Greeley-Evans Transit bus stop along N 35th Avenue. Bicycle lanes are proposed to be included 
in the widening of N 35th Avenue. Bicycle traffic can also access the site from connections to 
the Broadview Acres Trail, which is proposed for extension adjacent to the site with 
construction beginning in Fall 2020. Pedestrian access to the site is proposed to be facilitated 
by sidewalk connections to C Street and two accesses to Broadview Acres Trail. 
 
The applicant has diligently consulted with the Public Works Department and has adequately 
addressed transportation criteria (see Attachment K).  
  

G.  SERVICES 
 

WATER 
Adequate City of Greeley water infrastructure is present to serve the proposed development. 
The City intends to install non-potable infrastructure with the widening of N 35th Avenue in 
2021 and has discussed opportunities with the applicant. The applicant would continue to work 
with the Water & Sewer Department to finalize the design for the Final PUD. 
 
SEWER 
Adequate City of Greeley sewer infrastructure is present to serve the proposed development. 
The applicant would continue to work with the Water & Sewer Department to finalize the 
design for the Final PUD. 
 
EMERGENCY SERVICES 
The property is served by Greeley Police and Fire Departments. Fire Station #3 is located along 
N 35th Avenue immediately southeast of the subject site. Sufficient access is provided for 
emergency vehicles to reach the proposed development.  
 
PARKS, TRAILS, AND OPEN SPACES 
The site is served by the Broadview Acres Trail, which currently terminates near the southeast 
corner of the site at N 35th Avenue. The site will be further served by the anticipated extension 
of the Broadview Acres Trail along the Greeley #3 Ditch, which is located immediately 
adjacent to the site and will be constructed beginning in Fall 2020. Additionally, the Larson 
Trail is approximately 500 yards west of the site. The nearest public park, Ramseier Farm Park, 
is located about one-half mile east of the subject site.  
 

38



 
 

 

 

Planning Commission Summary  
ZON2020-0008 & PUD2019-0004 
July 14, 2020 Page 10 
 
 

 

 

The lot was previously zoned and platted for residential development and is not subject to land 
dedication or cash-in-lieu for parkland.   
 
The proposed development would also feature significant on-site open space and amenities, 
and residents may access amenities such as the recreation center and pool in the adjacent 
Stoneybrook development.  
 
SCHOOLS 
The subject site is within the boundaries of Greeley-Evans School District 6. The site is 
currently zoned R-H (Residential High Density), and the proposal is not anticipated to 
significantly alter the number of students when compared to developing under the current 
zoning. The applicant intends to finalize an agreement to pay cash-in-lieu towards school land. 

 
H. NEIGHBORHOOD IMPACTS 
 

VISUAL  
The proposed use is consistent with the area and adverse visual impacts are not anticipated by 
the proposed development. The proposal includes significant landscaping on the perimeter of 
the site, providing an attractive environment along N 35th Avenue, which is the only public 
thoroughfare adjacent to the subject site.  
 
NOISE 
The proposed use is not anticipated to generate excessive noise. Noise created by the proposed 
use will be regulated by the Municipal Code enforceable by the Greeley Police Department.  

 
I.  PUBLIC NOTICE AND COMMENT 
Neighborhood notices for this hearing were mailed to surrounding landowners on June 26 and 
notice was provided in the newspaper per Development Code standards. Signs were posted on the 
site on June 30. The applicant notified the mineral owner of this hearing in accordance with 
Development Code standards.   
 
No comments were received prior to finalizing this report.   
 
J.  PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDED MOTIONS 
 
The proposal encompasses two agenda items and requires two separate motions. The first motion 
is related to the rezoning, and the second motion is related to the Preliminary PUD.  
 
 
 

39



 
 

 

 

Planning Commission Summary  
ZON2020-0008 & PUD2019-0004 
July 14, 2020 Page 11 
 
 

 

 

Rezone:  
Based on the application received and the preceding analysis, the Planning Commission finds that 
the proposed Stoneybrook Subdivision Filing No. 1, Block 1, Lot 4 Rezone meets Development 
Code Section 18.30.050(c)(3) a, b, e, f, h and g and therefore recommends approval to City 
Council. 
 
Preliminary PUD:  
Based on the application received and the preceding analysis, the Planning Commission finds that 
the proposed Stoneybrook Subdivision Filing No. 1, Block 1, Lot 4 Preliminary PUD meets 
Development Code Section 18.32.040(b) and therefore recommends approval to City Council. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Attachment A – Vicinity Map 
Attachment B – Project Narrative 
Attachment C – Preliminary PUD 
Attachment D – Property Boundary Map 
Attachment E – Site Analysis Map 
Attachment F – Zoning Suitability Map 
Attachment G – Biologist’s Report 
Attachment H – Grading, Erosion, and Sediment Control Plans 
Attachment I – Preliminary Drainage Report 
Attachment J – Stormwater Management Plan 
Attachment K – Traffic Impact Study 
Attachment L – N 35th Ave Widening Plans 
 

40



VICINITY MAP 

 

SUBJECT SITE 

N
 3

5
th

 A
ve

n
u

e 

C Street 

Attachment A

41



 

Page 1 of 2 
 

July 7, 2020 

City of Greeley  
Department of Community Development 
Planning Services Division 
Attn: Mike Garrott, Planning Manager   
1100 10th Street -2nd Floor  
Greeley, CO 80631 
   

Re:   Stoneybrook Lot 4 Manufactured Home Community Preliminary PUD  
 

Project Narrative:  

Stoneybrook 234, LLC is submitting this Preliminary Planned Unit Development (PUD) application for Lot 4, Block 1 
of the Stoneybrook Filing No. 1 subdivision. This 20.657 acre parcel of land is located in the City of Greeley and the 
applicant proposes to rezone the property from R-H to a PUD in order to provide an affordable housing alternative 
in response to the residential market demands of the greater Greeley community.  Lot 4, Block 1, of Stoneybrook 
Subdivision Filing No. 1 is situated in the Northeast Quarter of Section 2, Township 5 North, Range 66 West of the 
6th P.M., City of Greeley, County of Weld, State of Colorado.   
 
The applicant proposes to develop a manufactured home community on the subject property.  The existing 
Stoneybrook manufactured home community lies west and is directly adjacent to the property.  Friendly Village, 
another existing manufactured home community is to the east, just across North 35th Avenue.  Greeley #3 Ditch lies 
to the south and will be the location of the City’s future Broadview Acres regional multi-modal trail. The northern 
edge of the subject property is bounded by C Street. C Street is a private street which currently provides access to 
the existing Stoneybrook community.  Just north of C Street lies a City of Greeley detention pond as well as 
undeveloped land.  

 
The applicant is proposing to develop 142 manufactured home sites, leasing land as required for each of the 142 
manufactured home sites.  Manufactured homes sites are in high demand in the greater Greeley area and the 
proposed development will assist the City of Greeley in meeting the demand for this important affordable housing 
option. The subject property and its envisioned design blends well with the existing contextual built environment 
and fit the character of proximal neighborhoods and their associated land uses. Home sites have been designed to 
maximize their flexibility in accommodating the varying dimensions and architectural elevations of manufactured 
homes.  Flexibility will allow residents multiple floor plan options and architectural styles to accommodate their 
specific needs.  Flexibility also allows the development to accommodate the needs of multiple income levels, 
household sizes, and building types.  The properties direct proximity to the Broadview Acres Regional Trail provides 
residents access to recreational opportunities and provides bike and pedestrian connections to schools, 
employment, and other services.  Close proximity of the trail will provide enhanced mobility options for residents. 
On the east side of the project, a connection will be provided to GET’s Route 3 bus stop located along North 35th 
Avenue.  Access to the transit amenity and will be important for community residents as it provides convenient 
connections to the Rodarte Transfer Center, large employers, the Greeley Mall Transit Center, and transfers to GET’s 
Route 1.  At the southwest corner of the property a new pedestrian / trail connection will be provided to access the 
planned Broadview Acres Trail and at the southeastern corner of the property an additional trail connection will be 
provided to access the Broadview Acres Trail. 
  

Attachment B

42



 

Page 2 of 2 
 

The subject property falls in elevation from the south to the north east (from the Greeley Ditch #3 towards the 
intersection of C Street and North 35th Avenue).  Mature existing trees line the properties frontage along North 35th 
Avenue.  Many of these trees are non-native species that will be removed during construction and replaced with 
climate-appropriate species. A large number of mature, specimen quality trees have been removed by the City of 
Greeley and have been relocated to City of Greeley owned facilities.  Large cottonwood trees also exist along the 
Greeley Ditch. A few of these trees are in poor health and will need to be removed during construction.  The reminder 
of the site is relatively free of mature vegetation and is covered by native / non-native grasses.  The southern street 
frontage, immediately adjacent to C Street was improved as part of the development of the original Stoneybrook 
community.  In this area grass turf, streetlights, and a small attached sidewalk exists. Many of these elements will 
be replaced as part of this development. 
 
The proposed design of the subject property will match historic storm water flows by conveying water to the north 
east corner of the development (south west corner of North 35th Avenue and C Street) where an extended detention 
basin will be constructed and will provide storage for water quality capture volume, excess urban runoff volume and 
detention volume for the 100-year storm event.  The pond will outlet to the existing 60” x 84” reinforced concrete 
box culvert located on the east side of North 35th Avenue.  Vehicular access to the site will avoid impacting North 
35th Avenue by providing access at two locations along C Street where the existing median breaks.  Community 
monument signs will be placed at each of these intersections.  A community map for emergency service providers 
and visiting guests will be also located at both entrances to the community along C Street.  

 
A large community park for neighborhood residents including a playground, tables and grills, a picnic shelter, 
extensive landscaping, grass turf, and additional soft scape is proposed just west of the main entrance.  The park will 
be oriented to provide views of the water feature north of C Street and will serve as the community’s front door for 
residents and visitors alike.  A long linear space will move from west to east along the south side of C Street, 
terminating at the new community park.  This linear space will create a visually attractive buffer that serves 
pedestrians and cyclists with a multi-modal path that connects to the existing sidewalk of the neighboring 
Stoneybrook community as well as North 35th Avenue.  A community pocket park will also be located interior to the 
site and will include gathering sites and horseshoe pits.  Two smaller pocket parks are located at the south west and 
south east corners of the property and will provide pedestrian and bicycle access to the forthcoming Broadview 
Acres Regional Trail. The pocket park located at the south east corner of the property will provide a bike maintenance 
station as well as a small play park for children. A well landscaped arterial / collector buffer will also run the length 
of the property’s east side along North 35th Avenue.  The current design for this buffer takes into account the City of 
Greeley’s future expansion of North 35th Avenue.  A 15-foot strip of land along the eastern edge of the property is 
proposed to be dedicated to the City of Greeley for its associated ROW needs for future 35th Avenue roadway 
expansion.    

 
The potable water distribution system and sanitary sewer collection system will be designed and constructed in 
accordance with City of Greeley standards and will be provided by Greeley Water and Sewer.  Electrical service will 
be provided by Xcel Energy and Natural Gas Services will be provided by Atmos Energy.  Telephone and 
telecommunication services will be provided by CenturyLink and Comcast.  All necessary utilities required to serve 
the subject property currently exist along the property frontage.  If you have any questions regarding the proposed 
plan, please feel free to call me at 720-225-4656.     
 

Sincerely, 

David Evans and Associates, Inc. 

 

Matthew J. Buster, P.E.  

43



Attachment C

44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



LOT 4
20.662 ACRES

LEGEND

1VICINITY MAP

V
:\

20
18

05
16

\D
W

G
\2

01
80

51
6R

E
Z

.d
w

g,
 1

0/
31

/2
01

9 
10

:0
9:

26
 A

M
, 1

:1

Attachment D

63



Attachment E

64



Attachment F 

65



Council Agenda Summary 

July 21, 2020 

Agenda Item Number 11

Title 

Pulled Consent Agenda Items 

66



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Council Agenda Summary 
July 21, 2020 

Agenda Item Number 12

Key Staff Contact: Brad Mueller, Community Development Director, 970-350-9786 

 Kira Stoller, Planner, 970-336-4050 

Title: 

A public hearing to consider a Final PUD Amendment to allow for a 6,751 square foot 

building addition on a parcel of property located at 1121 M Street 

Summary: 

Weld County is requesting to amend the existing Weld County Business Park Final PUD 

(Planned Unit Development) to allow for the construction of a 6,751 square foot 

addition to the existing building located at 1121 M Street. The building will be 

repurposed to house the Weld County Coroner’s Office. The coroner’s office has 

outgrown its current location at the Weld County Centennial Center located in 

downtown Greeley and is in need of a new facility that is more conducive to its work. 

Although the proposal does not constitute a change of use, the size of the building 

addition necessitates a major Final PUD Amendment.  

The proposed addition will house a drive-through garage, autopsy suite, cooler, freezer, 

storage and personal effects intake area, while the interior of the existing structure will 

be converted into an office suite and lobby. The proposed Final PUD Amendment also 

identifies as 675 square foot pad on the north end of the building for a future 

cooler/freezer enclosure. 

Final PUD’s, including site plans, require Council approval under current Code.  The 

Planning Commission considered this request on June 23, 2020 and unanimously 

recommended approval to City Council. 

Fiscal Impact: 
Does this item create a fiscal impact on the City of Greeley? No 

If yes, what is the initial, or, onetime impact? 

What is the annual impact? 

What fund of the City will provide Funding? 

What is the source of revenue within the fund? 

Is there grant funding for this item? N/A 

If yes, does this grant require a match? 

Is this grant onetime or ongoing? 

Additional Comments: 

67



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Legal Issues:   

Consideration of this matter is a quasi-judicial process which includes the following 

public hearing steps: 

1) City staff presentation 

2) Council questions of staff 

3) Applicant presentation 

4) Council questions of applicant 

5) Public input (hearing opened, testimony - up to three minutes per person, 

hearing closed) 

6) Rebuttal, if requested 

7) Council discussion 

8) Council decision 

Other Issues and Considerations: 

None noted. 

Applicable Council Priority and Goal: 

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Development Code standards. 

Decision Options:  

1) Approve the amended Final PUD as presented; or 

2) Amend the Final PUD and approve as amended; or 

3) Deny the amended Final PUD; or 

4) Continue consideration of the Final PUD amendment to a date certain. 

Council’s Recommended Action:  

A motion to approve amendment to the Weld County Business Park Final PUD to allow 

for construction of a new 10,266 square foot building at 1399 North 17th Avenue. 

Attachments: 

Planning Commission Minutes-Draft (June 23, 2020) 

Planning Commission Summary (Staff Report) (June 23, 2020) 

PowerPoint Presentation 

 

68



 

Planning Commission Proceedings                                                            1                                                                 June 23, 2020 
 

  
 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
Proceedings 

 
June 23, 2020 

 
Council Chambers – City Center South 

1001 11th Avenue 
1:15 p.m. 

 
 
I. Call to Order and Roll Call 

 
Chair Yeater called the meeting to order at 1:15 p.m. Commissioners Briscoe, Franzen and 
Modlin were present. (Commissioners Andersen, Schulte and Romulo were absent.)  

  
II. Approval of minutes for meeting held on May 26, 2020. 

 
Commissioner Briscoe moved to approve minutes of the meeting held on May 26, 2020. 
Commissioner Franzen seconded the motion. Motion carried 4-0. (Commissioners 
Andersen, Schulte and Romulo were absent.) 
 

III.      A public hearing to consider a Variance for a setback of 12 feet where 25 feet is 
required 

 
Project Name:  Spradley Barr Setback Variance 
Case No.:  VAR 2019-0019 
Applicant:  Cameron Knapp, Drexel Barrell & Co. on behalf of SB&W  
   Holdings, LLC 
Location:  2845 30th Street  
Presenter:  Carol Kuhn, Chief Planner 

 
Carol Kuhn addressed the Commission and referenced a memo that was provided to the 
Commissioners requesting a continuance of this matter to a date certain of June 30, 2020. 
Ms. Kuhn advised that the companion case to the variance, USR 2019-0019, was not 
properly noticed and that it would be beneficial to hear both items together. She requested a 
continuance of this item.  
 
Commissioner Franzen moved that the Planning Commission continue the setback variance 
item to June 30, 2020 to be heard with the related Use by Special Review application. 
Commissioner Modlin seconded the motion. Motion carried 4-0. (Commissioners, 
Andersen, Schulte and Romulo were absent.) 
 

69

scheffev
Line



 

Planning Commission Proceedings                                                            2                                                                 June 23, 2020 
 

IV. A public hearing to consider a Final Planned Unit Development (PUD) Amendment to 
allow for a 6,715 square foot building addition on a 2.63-acre parcel 
 
Project Name:  Tract B, Weld County Business Park PUD, 1st Amendment  
Case No.:  PUD2020-0001 
Applicant:  Kim Lambrecht, on behalf of Weld County 
Location:  1121 M Street 
Presenter:  Kira Stoller, Planner II 

 
Kira Stoller addressed the Commission and described the item as a request to amend the 
final PUD to allow for construction of a 6,715 square foot building addition. She presented 
a map of the Weld County Business Park and stated that the PUD was adopted in June of 
1988. Ms. Stoller presented a rendering showing the location of the site that is the subject 
of this hearing and described the surrounding areas. 
 
Ms. Stoller reported that a final PUD amendment for the site was approved in December 
1991 allowing for the development of the Weld County Ambulance Service Facility. She 
provided a brief description of the exterior construction materials of the building. 
Ms. Stoller advised that the County plans to convert the building for use by the Weld 
County Coroner’s Office and will include a drive-thru garage, autopsy suite, cooler, 
freezer, and storage and personal effects intake area. She added that the interior of the 
existing structure would be converted into an office suite and lobby. Ms. Stoller stated that 
the final PUD amendment identifies a 675 square foot pad on the north end of the building 
that the applicant proposes for a future cooler/freezer enclosure.  
 
Ms. Stoller presented several exterior elevations and advised that construction materials 
would match those used on the existing structure. She added that the existing overhead 
doors will be filled in to match rest of the structure, the existing driveway on the south will 
be removed and replaced with landscaping, and the existing metal roof will be replaced 
with a metal roof of a different color. Ms. Stoller presented several photographs of the 
existing building.  
 
A description of the five approval criteria described in Section 18.32.010 was provided and 
staff determined that all criteria fall within the Weld County Business Park PUD. Signs 
were posted at the site and letters were mailed to property owners within 500 feet of the 
property. Ms. Stoller reported that no inquiries had been received and that staff 
recommended approval. 
 
Commissioner Modlin asked whether the traffic patterns would change as a result of the 
building expansion. Ms. Stoller advised that traffic is expected to decrease since the current 
ambulance services will be relocated.  
 
The applicant did not address the Commission.  
 
Chair Yeater opened the public hearing opened at 1:27 p.m. There being no public 
comment from the gallery or via e-mail, the public hearing closed at 1:27. 
  

  

70



 

Planning Commission Proceedings                                                            3                                                                 June 23, 2020 
 

Commissioner Briscoe moved that, based on the application received and the preceding 
analysis, the Planning Commission finds that Tract B, Weld County Business Park PUD, 
1st Amendment, meets Development Code Section 18.32 and is consistent with the Weld 
County Business Park Final PUD; and, therefore, recommends approval of the Final PUD 
Amendment to the City Council. Commissioner Modlin seconded the motion. Motion 
carried 4-0. (Commissioners Andersen, Schulte and Romulo were absent.) 
 

V.  Staff Report  
 

Mike Garrott, Planning Manager, addressed the Commission for Brad Mueller who was not 
present and thanked the Commission for agreeing to schedule a special hearing on June 30. 
Mr. Garrott advised that a consultant was selected to work on updating the Development 
Code which is expected to be complete in late 2021 or early 2022. The consultant will 
work with staff to review the current Code and Comprehensive Plan to see how they align. 
He added that public outreach and education opportunities for the Planning Commission 
will be an important aspect of the Code update.  
 
Upon question by Chair Yeater, Mr. Garrott reported on how the City is doing from both a 
budgetary and operational standpoint. He noted that while work has always continued, 
there has been an incremental reopening of facilities with some, such as museums, 
remaining closed. Mr. Garrott reported that home sales remain fairly steady and that new 
development is continuing.  
 
Commissioner Modlin asked whether any major capital improvement programs were 
postponed. Mr. Garrott stated that everything continues to be evaluated, but that he had not 
heard about any capital improvement projects being postponed or cancelled. Upon question 
by Commissioner Modlin, Mr. Garrott advised that the Planning Commission will receive 
information about the Code change throughout the process. He described some of the 
anticipated changes and the impact they would have for planners and the public. 
 
Mr. Garrott responded to a question from Commissioner Franzen about the sign code and 
described the various available options when a business wants to change a sign. He added 
that staff encourages business owners to ask questions and learn about available options for 
replacing or updating signs.  
 
Mr. Garrott reported that the annual growth report was nearly complete and would be ready 
to present to the Commission in early July.  
 
Commissioner Briscoe noted the special meeting scheduled for next week and asked why 
some projects require approval prior to beginning work while others, such as Aims 
Community College, begin moving dirt prior to approval. Mr. Garrott explained the reason 
for the June 30 special meeting. He added that it is not uncommon for some projects to 
move forward and begin at-risk grading. Staff always advises developers of the risk. 
Mr. Garrott added that some sites, such as schools or utilities, are reviewed and approved 
administratively.  
 

  

71

scheffev
Line



PUD2020-0001 Planning Commission Summary           Page 1                          June 23, 2020 
Tract B Weld County Business Park PUD, 1st Amendment 

 
 

 

 

ITEM:    An amendment to the Weld County Business Park Final PUD 
(Planned Unit Development) to allow for a 6,715 square foot 
building addition 

 
FILE NUMBER:   PUD2020-0001 
 

PROJECT:    Tract B Weld County Business Park PUD, 1st Amendment 
 
LOCATION:    1121 M Street 
 

APPLICANT:   Kim Lambrecht, on behalf of Weld County 
  
CITY PLANNER:   Kira Stoller, Planner II 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION HEARING DATE:   June 23, 2020 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION FUNCTION: 
The Planning Commission shall consider the staff report, along with testimony and comments made 
by the applicant and the public and shall then make a recommendation to the City Council regarding 
the application in the form of a finding based on the review criteria in Chapter 18.32. 
 
                                                                                                                          
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The City of Greeley is considering a request by Kim Lambrecht, on behalf of Weld County, for an 
amendment to the Weld County Business Park Final PUD located at 1121 M Street. The request 
would allow for the construction of a 6,715 square foot building addition. 

 

A. REQUEST 

The applicant is seeking approval to amend the Weld County Business Park Final PUD to allow 
for construction of a 6,715 square foot building addition. 

 

B. STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Approval 
 

C. LOCATION 

The subject property is located on the northwest corner of the intersection of N 11th Avenue and 
M Street (see Attachment A – Vicinity Map). 
 

  

PLANNING COMMISSION SUMMARY 
 

72



PUD2020-0001 Planning Commission Summary           Page 2                          June 23, 2020 
Tract B Weld County Business Park PUD, 1st Amendment 

 Current Zoning:   PUD (Weld County Business Park) 
  

 Abutting Zoning:   North:  PUD 
     South:  PUD 

     East:    C-L (Commercial Low Intensity) 
     West:   PUD 
 
 Abutting Land Uses:  North: Office (Weld County Administration) 
     South:  Rehab center (Alternative Homes for Youth) 
     East:    Emergency shelter (Guadalupe Community Center) 
     West:   Medical office (North Range Behavioral Health) 
     

 Lot Size:    2.63 acres or 114,563 square feet 
      

Existing Lot Coverage: Building Area:     6,000 square feet   (5.2%) 
(approximate figures) Pavement:       17,677 square feet  (15.4%) 
         Landscaping/Open Space:  90,886 square feet  (79.3%) 
             Total       114,563 square feet  (100%) 
 

Proposed Lot Coverage: Building Area:                    12,715 square feet  (11.1%) 
         Pavement:       14,780 square feet  (12.9%)  
         Landscaping/Open Space:   87,068 square feet  (76.0%) 
             Total       114,563 square feet  (100%) 

 

Proposed Uses:     Coroner’s office  
 
 
D. BACKGROUND 

The Weld County Business Park Final PUD was adopted on June 7, 1988.  Tract B was originally 
designated for commercial and industrial uses.  A Final PUD amendment for the subject site was 
approved on December 3, 1991 (rec # 2291049) and allowed for the development of the Weld 
County Ambulance Service Facility.  The approval allowed for a 6,000 square foot building, 
constructed of smooth and split faced concrete masonry unit (CMU) blocks and a standing seam 
metal roof.  The approved site and landscape plan included 35 parking stalls, as well as minimal 
landscaping on the southeast side of the property.  Additionally, the site was permitted a 24 square 
foot brick monument sign with six inch metal lettering to the west of the eastern access drive.  
Stormwater detention and parking improvements were also approved for the site in April of 2007 
(rec # 3481488). 
 
The applicant is requesting a Final PUD Amendment to build a 6,715 square foot addition on the 
north side of the existing building, so that the facility can be repurposed to house the Weld County 
Coroner’s Office (see Attachment B – Applicant Narrative and Attachment C – Site Plan).  The 

73



PUD2020-0001 Planning Commission Summary           Page 3                          June 23, 2020 
Tract B Weld County Business Park PUD, 1st Amendment 

coroner’s office has outgrown its current location at the Weld County Centennial Center, in 
downtown Greeley, and is in need of a new facility that is more conducive to their work.  Although 
the proposal does not constitute a change of use, the size of the building addition necessitates a 
major Final PUD amendment. 
 
The proposed addition would house a drive-thru garage, autopsy suite, cooler, freezer, storage and 
personal effects intake, while the interior of the existing structure would be converted into an office 
suite and lobby.  The overall building would have a footprint of 12,715 square feet and a maximum 
height of 21 feet, 4 inches.  The proposed Final PUD Amendment also identifies a 675 square foot 
pad on the north end of the building, for a future cooler/freezer enclosure. 
 
The Weld County Business Park Final PUD was established prior to the adoption of the current 
Development Code.  Because it was initially reviewed and approved by City Council, rather than 
the Planning Commission, any amendments to the PUD, also require City Council approval. 
 

 
E. APPROVAL CRITERIA 

 

DEVELOPMENT CODE COMPLIANCE SECTION 18.32.010 – Purpose and intent.  
The purpose of this Chapter is to designate areas for the achievement of site design which 
provides a development of mixed land uses, or for uses and site designs which cannot otherwise 
be accommodated without PUD approval, through flexibility and creativity and to produce 
planned unit developments which are in keeping with the overall goals and objectives of the City's 
Comprehensive Plan. The intent is to permit such flexibility and provide performance criteria 
which:  
 
(1) Allow a diversity of uses, structures, facilities, housing types, open space and buffers in a 

manner compatible with existing and planned uses on adjacent properties;  
 
(2) Encourage and allow for greater innovative designs that promote more efficient and 

environmentally sensitive use of the land than generally achievable through conventional 
zoning and development regulations;  

 
(3) Protect the environment by affording opportunities and incentives for the preservation of 

environmentally sensitive and important natural or historic areas;  
 
(4) Promote the meaningful integration of common open area networks and developed recreation 

areas;  
 
(5) Promote further creativity in development layout, design and construction; 
 

74



PUD2020-0001 Planning Commission Summary           Page 4                          June 23, 2020 
Tract B Weld County Business Park PUD, 1st Amendment 

(6) Encourage development to occur in accordance with the coordinated and planned extension 
of existing and programmed community facilities and infrastructure; and  

 
(7) While the PUD may permit development of land in a way which might not be permitted under 

traditional zoning regulations, the PUD is not intended to modify or in any way alter or 
reduce the requirements of any building and/or zoning code requirements, unless 
commensurate benefits to the community are provided as part of the PUD plan and 
alternative protections are provided. (Ord. 65, 2002 §1; Ord. 27, 1998 §1) 

 

The review criteria found in Section 18.32.140(c) of the Greeley Development Code shall 

be used when considering a Final PUD approval request. 

1. Is the Final PUD Plan substantially in compliance with the approved Preliminary 

PUD Plan? 

 

Staff Comment: The Final PUD Amendment is in accordance with the Preliminary PUD, 
as amended, and the applicable Development Code as noted below: 

 
Building Elevations – The proposed elevations for the building addition align with the 
design of the existing structure, as well as other surrounding structures within the Weld 
County Business Park PUD (see Attachment E – Building Elevations).  The existing 
building is constructed of smooth and split faced concrete masonry unit (CMU) blocks 
and a blue standing seam metal roof.  As part of the proposed renovation, the four garage 
doors on the south side of the existing building would be filled in with smooth face CMU 
blocks, so that the internal space can be repurposed into offices.  The new garage would 
be located on the north end of the building addition and would be laid out as a drive-thru 
that is accessed from the east side of the building and exited on the west.  The existing 
roof would be replaced with a dark gray standing seam roof, while the roof of the addition 
would be flat and house mechanical equipment behind a parapet wall.  The future 
cooler/freezer enclosure would match the same architectural design as the current 
addition. 
 
Landscaping – The previous PUD approval called for five (5) honey locust trees along M 
Street and one (1) blue spruce tree in the parking island to the northeast of the building.  
Additionally, seven (7) buffalo junipers were to be located along the south and east sides 
of the building.  The site currently only contains two trees on either side of the eastern site 
access.  The applicant proposes to substantially upgrade the site landscaping in 
conjunction with the proposed building renovation.  Fourteen (14) new trees would be 
planted on the property, as well as over 200 shrubs and ornamental grasses (see 
Attachment D – Landscape Plan).  In total, the amended site plan would have 87,068 
square feet of landscaping/open space (76% of the property). 
 

75



PUD2020-0001 Planning Commission Summary           Page 5                          June 23, 2020 
Tract B Weld County Business Park PUD, 1st Amendment 

Signage – The Final PUD for the Weld County Ambulance Service Facility allowed for 
one 24 square foot freestanding brick sign with six inch metal letters. The monument sign 
that currently exists on the site, is 40 square feet in size and constructed of concrete 
masonry unit (CMU) blocks.  Although the existing sign is not in conformance with the 
previous approval, the applicant wishes to modify it to reflect the new name of the facility.  
Therefore, this Final PUD Amendment also proposes to revise the sign regulations for the 
subject site, to indicate that any future changes to the site signage shall comply with the 
regulations of the C-H (Commercial High Intensity) zone district. 
 
Photometric – The previous site plan called for two freestanding light poles on the north 
and east sides of the parking lot.  The light poles are 20 feet tall and consistent with the 
exterior lighting approved for the Weld County Administration Building to the north.  The 
proposed renovation of the site would include four freestanding light poles.  The lights 
would match the design and height of the existing fixtures on the site and would be situated 
in pairs to the east of the parking lot and to the west of the exit only driveway.  
Additionally, eleven wall mounted lights are proposed around the building exterior. 
 
Parking – The existing ambulance service facility required 35 paved parking spaces.  The 
coroner’s office has been designed for future growth of up to 18 employees.  Based on the 
required parking ratio for police and fire stations, ambulance storage (one space per 
employee, plus one space per company vehicle) a minimum of 21 parking stalls would 
need to be provided and 23 spaces have been proposed.  In addition to adjusting the site’s 
parking layout, the applicant plans to remove the existing driveway in front of the building 
and relocate the garage to the addition on the north side of the structure.  The garage would 
function as a one-way drive-thru and exit to a new driveway on the west side of the 
building. 

  
 
F. ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW TEAM COMMENTS 

The Administrative Review Team reviewed this proposal, and there are no outstanding 
comments pertaining to this Final PUD Amendment request. 
 

G. PHYSICAL SITE CHARACTERISTICS 

1. SUBDIVISION HISTORY 

The subject site was platted as Lot 3 of the Weld County Business Park Amended Tract B Minor 
Subdivision on April 6, 2007 (rec # 3467231).  The property has not undergone any additional 
subdivisions since it was platted. 

 
2. HAZARDS 

There are no known hazards associated with this proposal. 
 
 

76



PUD2020-0001 Planning Commission Summary           Page 6                          June 23, 2020 
Tract B Weld County Business Park PUD, 1st Amendment 

3. WILDLIFE 

There are no anticipated impacts to wildlife with this proposal. 
  

4. FLOODPLAIN  

The property does not lie within any flood zones. 
 

5. DRAINAGE AND EROSION 

The subject site generally drains from north to south.  An existing detention pond is located on 
the west side of the property and would continue to be used to the extent possible with necessary 
modifications to account for current design criteria.  A new detention pond is also proposed on 
the east side of the existing parking lot to direct flows away from the building.  Drainage pans 
would be installed to direct flows to both detention ponds.  Two variances were requested from 
the drainage design criteria due to site constraints, which have been approved by the Public 
Works Department. 

 

6. TRANSPORTATION 

The proposal should not have a significant impact on area traffic because the operational 
standards of the coroner’s office are expected to be far less than the previous emergency 
response ambulance garage. 
 

7. SERVICES 

City utility services currently serve the subject site and no impacts should result from this 
proposal. 
 

H. NEIGHBORHOOD NOTIFICATION 
Notification letters regarding the Final PUD request were mailed to property owners within 500 
feet of the site on June 10, 2020, pursuant to Development Code requirements.  Two signs were 
posted on the site on June 9, 2020.  No comments have been received to date, June 16, 2020. 
 

I. PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDED MOTION 

Based on the application received and the preceding analysis, the Planning Commission finds that 
the Tract B Weld County Business Park PUD, 1st Amendment, meets Development Code Section 
18.32, and is consistent with the Weld County Business Park Final PUD, and therefore, 
recommends approval of the Final PUD Amendment to the City Council, as submitted. 

 

J. ATTACHMENTS 
 Attachment A – Vicinity Map 
 Attachment B – Applicant Narrative 
 Attachment C – Site Plan 
 Attachment D – Landscape Plan 
 Attachment E – Building Elevations 

77



N
6th

Ave

H
S

t

N
12

th
A

ve

M St

N 17th Ave

O St

N
11

th
Av

e

N
8th

Ave

£¤85

1121

1138

1299

1255

1450

1309

1442

899

1150

651

1417

1111

1250

660
650

1110
1301

1228

1232

1140

1399

1400

1214
1220

1260

1218

1300

1105

1402

1311

1390

1228

1520

1472

1060

Vicinity Map

Tract B Weld County Business Park PUD, 1st Amendment
PUD2020-0001

¯0 0.1 0.20.05 Miles

Legend
Subject Site

Parcels

City Limits

Attachment A

78



WELD COUNTY CORONER
5/15/2020 

___________________________   _   ___________________________ 

Casper, WY | Greeley, CO | Sheridan, WY | Laramie, WY | www.gsgarchitecture.com 
Page 1 of 6 

Addition & Remodel – Project Narrative 

     On October 7, 2019, GSG Architecture met with Mike Garrott, Planning Manager, to review the 

proposed project scope of work, and outline the requirements for review and approval of a PUD 

Amendment. Submittal requirements were reviewed, and the resulting expectations were noted on the 

submittal checklists, which are attached. The following information outlines the need and desire for the 

Weld County Coroner to move to a facility that will allow the staff to perform their duties. 

     The Weld County Coroner currently resides in downtown Greeley, in the Weld County Centennial 

Center, located at 915 10th Street, on the 3rd floor. The Coroner’s office has outgrown this location, and 

is in need of facilities that better match the goal for the Coroner’s Office to meet their mission:  to 

provide a timely, proactive investigation to determine cause and manner of death in a professional, 

efficient and compassionate fashion.  The urban setting of the current coroner’s office is not conducive 

to completion of their work. When the Weld County Ambulance Garage became available, the County 

saw an opportunity to repurpose the existing building, and add onto it, to develop a comprehensive 

facility that would meet the current and future needs of the Coroner’s Office. 

LAND USE DATA 

Legal Description: Lot 3, Weld County Business Park Amended Tract B Minor Subdivision 

Address: 1121 M Street 

Existing/Proposed Zoning: PUD 

Site Area:  2.630 acres (114,563 SF)  100% 

Overall Building Footprint:  12,715 SF  11.1% 

Total Parking & Circulation:  13,100 SF  11.4% 

Sidewalk/Patios:     1,680 SF  1.5% 

Landscaping/Open Space:  87,068 SF  76.0% 

Parking: 23 spaces total 

(Proposed)  15 standard spaces (9’ x 18’) 

 7 standard spaces (9’ x 17’) 

 1 ADA accessible spaces (8’ x 17’) with 13’ aisle (existing condition) 

Attachment B

79



WELD COUNTY CORONER
5/15/2020 

___________________________   _   ___________________________ 

Casper, WY | Greeley, CO | Sheridan, WY | Laramie, WY | www.gsgarchitecture.com 
Page 2 of 6 

Zoning Land Use 

Site PUD Existing: Ambulance Garage     Proposed: Coroner’s Office 

North PUD Weld County Administration Building 

East PUD North 11th Ave. &  Catholic Charities Community Center 

South PUD Youth Home & Behavioral Health Center 

West PUD Behavior Health Center 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

     The existing building was built in 1992, and is approximately 6,000 SF. It is a single-story wood 

framed structure, with a split face / smooth face CMU veneer. The existing roof is a blue standing seam 

metal roof. The structure was originally used as an ambulance garage, housing up to four (4) 

emergency response vehicles in the garage, and also included offices, a training room, and residential-

like facilities (sleeping quarters, a kitchen, restrooms and laundry room) to serve the on-call emergency 

response medical professionals. 

     This project proposes to renovate the existing structure (including the garage space) into a 

professional office suite, which will include several offices, workstations, a conference room, break 

room, storage, restrooms, a lobby/reception area and a family meeting room. Its purpose will be to 

house the County Coroner, and support staff.  The existing roof will be replaced with a dark gray 

standing seam roof, and the garage space will be repurposed into office spaces. The existing overhead 

garage doors will be in-filled with metal stud framing and decorative CMU veneer. Translucent windows 

will be placed above eye level to let in filtered light but keep prying eyes out.   

     Additionally, the project will build a 6,715 SF single story addition onto the north side of the building 

which will house the clinical component of the Coroner’s Office, and will include a drive-thru garage for 

the Coroner’s vehicles to allow for direct transfer of decedents into the building, an autopsy suite, an 

isolation room, a cooler, a freezer, storage and personal effects intake and storage. The exterior 

finishes will consist of matching split face and smooth face CMU veneer, in patterns consistent with the 

existing building. The roof will be flat and will house roof-top mechanical equipment behind a parapet 

wall. Translucent skylights will be included to let natural filtered light into the autopsy suite. 

     Police, attorneys, visiting doctors and affiliated professionals on official business are the primary, but 

rare, visitors to the building. The Coroner’s office is not intended to be a public facility to the extent that 

the public stops in without an appointment. The facility is set up to receive family members who are 

specifically there to identify and/or coordinate a deceased persons status. This interaction occurs in the 

80



WELD COUNTY CORONER
5/15/2020 

___________________________   _   ___________________________ 

Casper, WY | Greeley, CO | Sheridan, WY | Laramie, WY | www.gsgarchitecture.com 
Page 3 of 6 

Family Meeting Room located off the lobby. The reception office and rooms beyond will be secure, with 

access only for official business, via an employee escort.  

ARCHITECTURE 

     The existing building is a wood framed, decorative CMU veneer structure, with a hipped blue 

standing seam metal roof. The addition will occur on the north side of the existing building; will have a 

decorative CMU veneer to complement the existing building; and will have a flat roof with a parapet 

wall. This project proposes to leave the shape and form of the exterior of the existing building generally 

intact, while infilling doors and windows that conflict with the interior renovation and addition. The 

existing roof will be removed, and a new dark gray standing seam metal roof installed. 

     Compliance with Section 18.40.090(10) building element groups: 

Group 1 – exterior wall articulation:  The existing building is well articulated on the front and sides. 

Additionally, we will be infilling the existing overhead doors with CMU and will be insetting that infill so 

as to create additional designed shadow line. The addition will use the changes in CMU textures and 

patterns to create the articulation. 

Group 2 – roof articulation:    The existing hip style standing seam metal roof is highly articulated, and 

reflects the various wall articulations, as well as the different ceiling heights found within the building. 

Additionally, the addition will have a flat roof surrounded by a parapet wall to create a different form and 

reflect a different internal use by the Coroner’s office. 

Group 3 – building openings, walkways, and entrances:   The main building entrance has a covered 

walk, flanked by CMU columns, which clearly delineate it as the primary entrance for visitors. Other 

entrances to the building are limited to employee access and emergency exit only doors. These 

entrances are not highlighted, in an effort to minimize the tendency for the public to explore. 

Group 4 – building materials:    The existing structure and proposed addition will be comprised entirely 

of decorative CMU veneer. Two different textures are used (split face rough texture and a smooth face 

texture). The split face CMU will be used as the field texture, with the smooth face CMU being used to 

accent doors, windows and other decorative features of the building. 

Group 5 – other architectural definition:    The existing roof eaves extend 2-feet beyond the face of the 

structure, creating shadow lines that give a visual interest to the façade.  

81



WELD COUNTY CORONER
5/15/2020 

___________________________   _   ___________________________ 

Casper, WY | Greeley, CO | Sheridan, WY | Laramie, WY | www.gsgarchitecture.com 
Page 4 of 6 

SIGNAGE 

     The site is currently home to a 10-foot long by 4-foot high decorative concrete masonry unit sign, 

located near the building’s front entry, facing M Street. Based on information from the initial PUD 

approval, this sign is not in conformance with that initial project approval. Because the sign is in good 

condition, and matches the aesthetics of the existing structure, we respectfully request that the existing 

sign be allowed to remain, and modified to reflect the new name for the facility (Weld County Coroner). 

In order to quantify this request, we look to the C-H (Commercial High Intensity) zoning district which 

allows for monuments signs of up to 50 sq. ft. when the setback is less than 50 feet. The existing sign 

sits approximately 48 feet back from the street and has 40 sq. ft. of surface area, and as such complies 

with the regulations of the C-H zone district. Additionally, future changes to the site signage shall 

comply with the regulations of the C-H zone district. 

ACCESS 

     Primary access to the site will be from M Street, via an existing driveway that leads to the parking 

lot, as well as provides access to the new garage. The garage is a one-way drive-thru operation that 

will exit out the opposite side, onto an ‘exit only’ driveway onto M Street. Note, the existing driveway 

and garage approach will be demolished and replaced with turf/landscaping. The separation between 

the driveways is 125-feet, which is slightly less than the required 135-feet for driveway separation onto 

a local road in a commercial/industrial land use area.  

Variance Request:  Weld County respectfully requests a variance from the 135-foot separation 

requirement for the following reasons: 

 The existing 4-vehicle wide driveway, which is currently only 80-feet from the parking lot access,

is being removed.

 The new access point is a one-way driveway with an ‘exit only’ onto M Street.

 Because this is limited to vehicles exiting from the garage, the daily trips from this driveway will

be minimal

 The location of the existing detention pond, which will be reconfigured to account for this project,

limits the ability to shift to the driveway any further west.

82



 

 

 
 

 

 

WELD COUNTY CORONER 
5/15/2020 

___________________________   _   ___________________________ 
 

Casper, WY | Greeley, CO | Sheridan, WY | Laramie, WY | www.gsgarchitecture.com 
Page 5 of 6 

 

 M Street is slightly curved at this location. As such, the driveway will need to slightly curve 

towards the existing driveway in order to make a 90-degree connection onto M Street. This also 

contributes to the reduction in distance between the drives. 

 

PARKING 

     The Coroner’s Office currently has ten (10) employees – three of which work during normal business 

hours. The remaining seven (7) employees work the two shifts outside of business hours, which include 

weekends. The project is designed for future growth of up to eighteen (18) total employees, of which 

two to three would remain daytime employees, and the remaining will be shift employees. All 

employees have permanent offices/workstations in the existing renovated part of the building, and only 

move to work in the clinical side of the building as required to perform clinical duties. No employees will 

have a permanent workstation in the clinical side of the building. 

     The Coroner has three (3) vehicles, one that would generally be located on site, and two that are 

typically assigned to the shift employees, who are typically not on site. The ten (10) employees and the 

full fleet of three (3) vehicles would need thirteen (13) spaces total – if all were to be on site at the same 

time.  

     Using the parking criteria that falls under the land use category of Police & Fire Stations, and 

Ambulance Storage, which requires (1) space per employee, plus (1) space per company vehicle, the 

minimum parking required is 13 spaces at the present time. Factoring future growth, the site could 

potentially need 21 spaces.  

     The parking needs of the facility can be met with the proposed 23 spaces, and the proposed 

quantity does not exceed the allowance for a 125% overage. 

 

DRAINAGE        

       The existing developed site generally drains from the north to the south, with flows either sheet 

flowing to the street on the east side or surface draining through drainage channels to an existing 

detention pond along the west side of the site.  

     To the extent feasible, this existing detention pond will continue to be used, with any modifications 

that may be necessary to account for current design criteria, and the new site design. A drainage plan 

will be added to the north side of the building addition to direct flows to the existing detention pond. A 

detention pond and drainage pan has also been added to the east side of the existing parking lot to 

direct flows away from the building and through the parking lot to the street. It is important to note that 

83



 

 

 
 

 

 

WELD COUNTY CORONER 
5/15/2020 

___________________________   _   ___________________________ 
 

Casper, WY | Greeley, CO | Sheridan, WY | Laramie, WY | www.gsgarchitecture.com 
Page 6 of 6 

 

the overall impervious area of the site has not increased significantly. The building addition is being 

located over an existing asphalt parking lot, and although the east parking lot is being expanded, the 

existing four vehicle driveway will be eliminated and replaced with turf.  

 

TRAFFIC 

     M Street is classified as a Local Street, according to the 2035 Comprehensive Transportation Plan, 

and primarily serves the Behavioral Centers, the Youth Home and the future Coroner’s Office. M Street 

connects North 11th Avenue (a 4-lane Major Arterial street, operating in an uncongested manner) and 

North 17th Avenue/H Street (a Local Street, ultimately connecting to O Street, a 2-lane Major Arterial, 

which currently operates in a failing manner, but is expected to improve to a passing level of service 

when improvements are made to the road). Because the Coroner’s site has limited public access, the 

traffic impacts from this project are estimated to be minimal. Employees will travel to and from work in 

their personal vehicles. The Coroner’s fleet of vehicles consist of three (3) F-150 pickup trucks, and 

travel to and from the site as needed to attend to a deceased person. Funeral home hearses, 

ambulances, small delivery vans, law enforcement, and families coming to the office will be the typical 

visitor – occurring two or three times a week. 

     Based on the current operational standards of the Coroner’s Office, we estimate that the Coroner’s 

daily activity will be far less than that of the previous Ambulance (Emergency Response) Facility.  

     See Project Narrative for additional information regarding employees and operations. 

84



��������˝   $ ������������

˝   	���<
 �	�˝ ������� �̃1��1�=�

�K�	ˆ ˝ �˛ �˛ �L=��� �̃

�K�	ˆ ˝ �˛ �˛ �L=��� �̃

<�K������ �$ �	˙  ��

A�E� �° ˙ ���˛ �� �

>�E

����������	

����
��	�	�������������
�

��������������
�����	��������	


����
��	�	��������������
�

����������
��������	


����
��	�	����������

������
��� �!������
��"�����	��������	


����
��	�	����������

<�E� ��ˆ ���
 �	�˝ ������� �̃1=���1<;˝ � �?

<�E� ��ˆ ���
 �	�˝ ������� �̃1=���1<;˝ � �?

� �� 
����˙ˆ ˝ ��

���˜	˜

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
	
�


�
�����
�

˛ ˛ L=��1˜>�

�
�˜<E

#�����
#

#�����
#

#
�
�

�
�
�

#

AK���������	$� ���K<<�<K

#!����#

#!����#

#!����#

��° ���˛ �	 �� ���˘���� �����° �� ����

#!����#

#!����#

 �˝   ˝ �;��˝ �	 �?

L=��ˇ ˜A

<�K� ���˛ ���˘̨ ��
˛ �L=��� �̃

<�K� ���˛ �˛ �L=��> 1̃

�K������ �$ �	˙  ��

�K������ �$ �	˙  ��

�ˆ ˙ = �ˆ L=���˜�A������L=�><˜�ˇ �;MAK�˝ �	?

������L=�><˜�ˇ �;MAK̋ �	?

������L=�><˜̌ ��;M<<K�˝ �	?

�ˆ ˙ �< �ˆ L=���˜<�������L=�>�˜A��;MAK̋ �	?

�����L=�>Ã 1��;M=K�˝ �	?

 �° ˙ ��� ���ˆ ���
�� �� �° ˙ ��������H�ˆ ˝ �

�˛ ˛ �	���� ˛ ˛˝   $ ��° �����

	����ˆ � ˝   $ ��° �����

���˝ �˛ � ˝ ����� � ��

	����ˆ � ˝   $ ��° �����

��������	
����

��������������������������	
��


���������
��������������������

	
°

	
°

	
°

1

�

�

<

<

>

>

=

�

A

�

ˇ

<�

<<

<�

<1

<1

<=

<>

<>

<�

<�

<A

<ˇ

<ˇ

<ˇ

��

=��>

=���

=��>

=���

�
�
@

�
�

�
˝ �

��������� ��ˆ ���

<�E�D��K

��������� ��ˆ ���

��E�D��K

�
�

��
��

�
��

 �
�

ˆ
�

�
�

<�
E�D

��
K

<�E�D��K �=E�D��K <AE�D��K

<�
��

˝ 
	

�
�

�D�
ˇ�

ED�
K<A

��

��

��

��

��

�
��

˝ 
	

�
�

�D�
�

1E
D�K

�
>E

D�
K

<�
 �

 �
�

˝ 
	

�

�1

�1

�H���
����

���� �̆
�H��

�
�
E

�
1˜

>E

=Ã
�
>E

>�
˜�

>E

�
=E

ˇ Ã �E

<�˜�>E

�E

�E

<1˜�>E

ˇ =E

AE

�Ǎ N=�E<<K�����=�>˜>1E

�
<1

N1
AE

�
AK

�
��

��
ˇ�

˜Ǎ
E

�>�N��E��K�����<��˜>1E

�
11N�

�E�
�K����>>˜>

�E

�>�N��E�<K�����<Ã ��EE

�11N�
�E�

�K��<
�1˜>1E

�>�N>�E�AK������˜>1E

�
�

�
N�

�
E1

�
K�

��
��
<A

=˜
A�

E

�L1<<˜��E
 L>=�˜��E
OL11N��E��K
	˙ L��1N��E�AK�
1��˜�=E

�L=�˜<�E
 L1�˜��E
OLˇ �N��E��K
	˙ L�==N>�E�AK�
=�˜=1E

<

�H�����° �

˝ �˝ �����
�������

1�E

�<E

<=E <AE

˛ ��� ��	����
˘̨  ��:�
�
��� �

������ �˙ � ���
��������!���ˆ ����
� �����	���� ��
�����˜>

�˙ �����H�� �� ���� �

< �̃ ����	��	 ����������$���������

� �̃ ����� ����������˛  �ˆ �°    ° �!

1 �̃   ��˛ � �˛ ��� ��� �$�������  ° ���
	����
�����˛  ��:�
�!� ˝˝ �H �̃��>��P�˛ ��
	��	 �������� �̆��	� �����	ˆ ��
��	���� ��

= �̃ ˝  $��° �  �

> �̃ ˙ ���	��˝  $��° ���	������˙ ���° ��!���
�
��° ���������

� �̃ �H�����° �	ˆ ���������° ���° �� �ˆ ���!�����
<  ̆ <˜=�˛ � �������° � ° �

� �̃  ˝˝ �H�ˆ �����	������˛ �����
� ���� ˆ �


Ã �  ˝˝ �H�ˆ �����	������˛ �° ���
 �� �����

ˇ �̃ ���	� �	������ ��������  �!�����
���	� �	�

<� �̃ 1D����� ��������$�� 	$

<< �̃ � �����	���� �

<� �̃ �H�����° ���������������

<1 �̃ �H�����° �������$���� ����

<= �̃ �H�����° � ˆ ��� �	��°    ° ��� ���������
��� ���������� ���	������˙ �
����	���°

<> �̃ ˝ �H��	  �� ���


<� �̃ � �����˙  ��°    ° �

<� �̃ �H�����° �� �� ° ��	˙ �������� ����

<Ã � �H�����° ������� �����

<ˇ �̃ ������E������ˆ ���������° ˙ ��˛ �H�� �

�� �̃ �H�����° �� �� ° ����

�< �̃ ��������

�� �̃ 	��	 ����� ���˝ �

�1 �̃ �H�����° �������$�ˆ �� �̃=ED�K������ ���ˆ  H �
�ED�K�����

���	 �������

�,.%� +%' "� �˜�1��' *+%) �;<<=!>�1��˛ ?�������� <��@
�3,(2,0&�˛ / / .- +,0." ����� ���<�!�<>��� ��� ���<<˜<@
˝' +5,0&�' 02�	,+*3(' .,/ 0" ����� ���<1!<����� ��� ���<<˜=@
�' 02) * ' - ,0&̆ �- %0��- ' *%" ���A�!��A��� ���� �����˜�@
�,2%B' (5˘̋ ' .,/ ) ���� �����<!�A���� �����<˜>@

˝' +5,0&" �1�) - ' *%) �./ .' (
������ <>�) .' 02' +2�) - ' *%) �;ˇ  9�<A ?
������� ��) .' 02' +2�) - ' *%) �;ˇ  9�<� ?
������� <� ��' * *%) ) ,7(%�) - ' *%) �;A 9�<� ?�B,.C�A ) C' +%2�' ,) (%

����	
�	�����

���(���	&�

�����

�����	���

+,
+,
	�
�

�
	$
%�
�
	
�
�
�
�
�
	-	
)
�
�
�
�
�
�
.	�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
	/
01
+2
		�
�	
34
0-
//
/-
+%
4+

�
�

�
�
�
.	
�
�
		
		
		
		
		
		

"
�
�
��
�
�
.	
�
�
		
		
		
		
		
�
�
�
�
!
��
.�
�

�
˘=

˘�
�

�
�

�<
"�

�
">

=�
˝ˆ

	
"I�

)%
+)

IJ7
+%

B
%+̃

°
�

°
I�

/*
36

%0
.)

I�
�

�
�
#�

�
�

�
#	

�
�

�
�

�
#	

�
 

�
�

�
 

# 
�

�
��

��
�

#	
�

�
�

 
 �

#ˆ
�

�
�

�
#<

ˇ�
ˇ<

<1
#ˆ

#�
+,8

%#
J7

+%
B

%+̃
+8

.

˝ ��������˝ � �

(�

�
�
�
�
	�
�


�
�
�

$
$
%
$
	!
	
�
�
�
�
�
.	
)
�
�
�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
		
/
0
1
+
$

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
�
5
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�

%04%

01'03'%0%0

 �˜�

�� �˙<K�L���ED�K
�����˝ � �

�����
�����	!
�	��	��	����������	���"	����������	����	�#	

)������	�����
�����	�������-	�"�	����6	����������	"���	

���	�����5�	�"�	���)�	��)�����6	������������	#��	�����.	
�!����.	��	���)�	��#��������	#��	�"��"	�"�	����	�	"���	"��!��	

��������	���			7777777777777777777777777777777777777777777				77777777777

																																					��!!
����	��5����!���	��������														����	

�/ ˜  %8,) ,/ 0��%) *+,- .,/ 0 �' .%

�����	���������������
˝  $����� ˆ ���ˆ ���

<�������	����	�ˆ ˆ ��������������������1˘��˘����

�������	����	�ˆ ˆ ���������������>˘<>˘������������

1������	����	�ˆ ˆ ���������1������˘�ˇ ˘�������������

Attachment C

85



1 GTR*
*STREET

TREE

1 GTR*
*STREET

TREE

1 GES*
*STREET

TREE

1 GES*
*STREET

TREE

1 GES*
*STREET

TREE

SEE ENLARGEMENT LP401

ORGANIC WOOD MULCH
TYPE: 100% SHREDDED CEDAR

LANDSCAPE LEGEND:

EDGER (6" ht. / 7gauge min.)

IRRIGATED SOD
(3 TYPE BLUEGRASS HYBRID

BLEND W/ 20% TEXAS
BLUEGRASS)

19. AUTOMATIC IRRIGATION SYSTEM SHALL BE EQUIPPED WITH AN AUTOMATIC RAIN DETECTION DEVICE.

CITY OF GREELEY SIGNATURES
CONSTRUCTION MUST BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE CITY OF
GREELEY CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS. THE CITY'S ACCEPTANCE ALLOWS
FOR PLAN DISTRIBUTION AND PERMIT APPLICATION. THE CITY'S
ACCEPTANCE SHALL NOT RELIEVE THE DESIGN ENGINEER'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR ERRORS, OMISSIONS, OR DESIGN DEFICIENCIES FOR WHICH THE CITY IS
HELD HARMLESS.

ACCEPTED BY:

_____________________________________     ____________
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR DATE

0 10'20' 20' 40' N O R T H

OVERALL
LANDSCAPE
PLAN

LP100

PROJECT #:
DATE:
DRAWN BY:

35
35

 W
ES

T 1
2th

 S
TR

EE
T .

 G
RE

EL
EY

, C
OL

OR
AD

O 
80

63
4  

T:
 97

0.8
88

.32
73

C
A

SP
ER

, W
Y 

 
  S

H
ER

ID
A

N
, W

Y 
 

  L
A

R
A

M
IE

,W
Y

MT

W
E

L
D

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

11
21

 M
 S

T
R

E
E

T
, G

R
E

E
L

E
Y

 C
O

L
O

R
A

D
O

  8
06

31

C
O

R
O

N
E

R
 R

E
N

O
V

A
T

IO
N

 A
N

D
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N

2072
06/10/2020

No. Revision Description Date

WELD COUNTY BUSINESS
PARK PUD AMENDMENT

1       CITY COMMENTS          03/20/2020

Attachment D

86



EXISTING BUILDING,
RE: ARCHITECTURE

PROPOSED BUILDING,
RE: ARCHITECTURE

ANY AREAS OF TURF
DISTURBANCE TO BE
RE-SODDED

ANY AREAS OF TURF
DISTURBANCE TO BE
RE-SODDED

CONTRACTOR TO FIELD
LOCATE ALL UTILITIES AND
ENSURE NO PLANTS TO BE
INSTALLED IN CONFLICT WITH
EXISTING INFRASTRUCTURE

EXISTING SHADE TREE
TO REMAIN IN PLACE -
INCLUDED IN STREET
TREE COUNT

PROPOSED DRIVE,
RE: CIVIL

PARKING LOT, RE: CIVIL

CONCRETE PAN,
RE: CIVIL

3 POP

4 PAL
3 CIN

3 CGR

2 HSE

2 PAL

2 AAL

1 CST

2 BGR

2 CST
2 BGR 1 COS

3 CGR

2 PAL

2 CIN

2 COS

28'-9"

10'-0"

10'-0 1
2 "

19'-9"

27'-10"

4 PAL5 BGR
2 HSE4 CGR

3 PAL

2 HSE

3 CGR

3 HSE
2 CIN

2 COS

3 SOR

1 POP

1 PPU

3 HSE

1 QMA*

4 CIN

1 CSP*

4 COS

1 AAL

3 SOR

1 COS

2 PAL2 CGR

1 GTR

1 POP

2 CST

1 PPU

5 BGR

1 COS

2 CIN

3 BGR

1 GTR

2 PAL

3 CGR

2 COS

3 CGR

1 AAL

1 COS

2 SOR

2 CIN

ANY AREAS OF TURF
DISTURBANCE TO BE
RE-SODDED

ANY AREAS OF TURF
DISTURBANCE TO BE
RE-SODDED

5 CGR

3 HSE

3 COS

2 AAL

3 SOR

3 HSE

1 BGR
1 COS

2 CIN

2 HSE
2 BGR

1 COS

1 COS

2 HSE

2 CIN

1 COS

2 BGR

1 BGR

1 COS

1 COS

2 CIN

2 BGR

1 BGR

1 BGR

2 HSE 1 CST

4 PAL

4 HSE

5 BGR
3 CGR

2 CIN

4 CIN

4 HSE

4 PAL

4 BGR
3 PAL

2 BGR

3 CGR

3 HSE
3 HSE

2 CIN

1 CSP

1 CST
1 POP

1 CST
1 AAL

1 POP

SIDEWALK, RE: CIVIL

1 CSP

1 AAL

*STREET
TREE

*STREET
TREE

1 GTR*
*STREET

TREE

EXISTING SHADE TREE
TO REMAIN IN PLACE -
INCLUDED IN STREET
TREE COUNT

ORGANIC WOOD MULCH
TYPE: 100% SHREDDED CEDAR

LANDSCAPE LEGEND:

EDGER (6" ht. / 7gauge min.)

IRRIGATED SOD
(3 TYPE BLUEGRASS HYBRID

BLEND W/ 20% TEXAS
BLUEGRASS)

19. AUTOMATIC IRRIGATION SYSTEM SHALL BE EQUIPPED WITH AN AUTOMATIC RAIN DETECTION DEVICE.

CITY OF GREELEY SIGNATURES
CONSTRUCTION MUST BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE CITY OF
GREELEY CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS. THE CITY'S ACCEPTANCE ALLOWS
FOR PLAN DISTRIBUTION AND PERMIT APPLICATION. THE CITY'S
ACCEPTANCE SHALL NOT RELIEVE THE DESIGN ENGINEER'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR ERRORS, OMISSIONS, OR DESIGN DEFICIENCIES FOR WHICH THE CITY IS
HELD HARMLESS.

ACCEPTED BY:

_____________________________________     ____________
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR DATE

0 5'10' 10' 20' N O R T H

LANDSCAPE
PLAN
ENLARGEMENT

LP401

PROJECT #:
DATE:
DRAWN BY:

35
35

 W
ES

T 1
2th

 S
TR

EE
T .

 G
RE

EL
EY

, C
OL

OR
AD

O 
80

63
4  

T:
 97

0.8
88

.32
73

C
A

SP
ER

, W
Y 

   
   

   
  S

H
ER

ID
A

N
, W

Y 
   

   
   

LA
R

A
M

IE
,W

Y

MT

W
E

L
D

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

11
21

 M
 S

T
R

E
E

T
, G

R
E

E
L

E
Y

 C
O

L
O

R
A

D
O

  8
06

31

C
O

R
O

N
E

R
 R

E
N

O
V

A
T

IO
N

 A
N

D
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N

2072
06/10/2020

No. Revision Description Date

WELD COUNTY BUSINESS
PARK PUD AMENDMENT

1       CITY COMMENTS               03/20/2020

87



�����������	
 ���� �� �����������	

 ���� ��

����������	�	���
  ��� ��

����������	�	���
 ���� ��

˘ˇ ˇ �������ˆ�ˆ�ˆ
 ˙  �� ��

˙

 

�

˝

�

�
˛

˛

�

�

°

 ��ˇ

˜  ˜  ˜  ˜  ˜  ˜  

�

 ˝
 ˝ ˝

 ˛ ��! ��	����	�ˇ ! �
 ˙ ˙ ��  �� "̇ �

�����������	
 ���� ��

�����������	
 ���� ��

����������	�	���
  ��� ��

����������	�	���
 ���� ��

˘ ˇ ˇ �������ˆ�ˆ�ˆ
 ˙  �� ��

�
� � �

˝ ˝

˙

�

�˝

 

 

°

˛

�

� �

        

! !! ˙

 �
˝˘

�

 ˛��! ��	����	�ˇ ! �
 ˙ ˙ ��  �� "̇ �

 °�����! 	���ˇ ��˘˜ ��˜ # ���"��������	��������
˜ ���	����$����! �����	# �! 	˘ %����# ��˜ ��
�������! �

 °������������˘˜ ��˜ # � �̂˜ ���	����$����! ���
��	# �! 	˘% ����# ��˜ ���������!

��˘ �ˇ ��! ���˘ # �	�����˘ �����
˜ ���	�ˇ ˘ 	&�! 	˘ %

����������# ����������������� �̂˜ ���	�
��! ���! 	˘%

 �̂ ������˘ �ˇ ��! ���˘ # �# ��˘ ��	���ˆ

˙ �̂ ����! ����	��%���# ' �����	����ˇ ��˘ ���

˝ �̂ �������! �! 	���ˇ ��˘ ˜ ��˜ # �

� �̂ ����! 	���ˇ  �˘ ˜ ��˜ # �' ����˘ 	�˘ �����	������! 	���ˇ ��˘ ˜ ��˜ # ��
# ������������! �! 	���ˇ ��˘ ˜ ��˜ # ��# ˘ �˜ ���������! �˜ # ��( ����	�
˜ ��	���! �̂

˛ �̂ $���˘ 	ˇ '�����˙ "̆  ˆ�

° �̂ # ˜   � # ��˘ ��˜ ����! '�����˝ "̆ ˝ ˆ̇

� �̂ �����! �˘ 	ˇ �' �����˘ �����	�# ˘ ���˘ ˜ ��	��	�) ˆ

� �̂ �������! ����ˇ ��' ��	���˜ ��˘ ! ˘ �����ˇ ˘ # ˘ ! �

* �̂ �������˜ ��ˇ �	����$��������������! �$���ˇ ��! �˘ �ˇ �˘ ˇ ˇ �����

 � �̂ ������������! �˘ +��! ���������˘ ����'�˜ ���	�����˜ ��ˇ �$%�˘ 	˜ ����˜ �

  �̂ ˜ # ���������˘ ��! ˘ 	˘ ! ��ˇ ��	�����ˇ ˘ �����˜ ������ �̂���� "̆ �ˆ̇ �˘ �ˇ �
�"̆ �ˆ̇ ˆ

 ˙ �̂ �# ������˘ ˜ ��˜ # �����ˇ ����	����˜ ���	��������˜ �

 ˝ �̂ ��  ��˘ 	˘ �����˜ ����	� ����˘ ��������˘ ��$����# �����˜ ����	����˙ �
��˜ ����# ˘ ��# �# �˘ $�( ��˘ ˇ  ˘ ˜ ����	������	�˘ ˜ � �̂! 	���ˇ ��˘ ˜ ��˜ # ��
˘ 	���ˇ ��˜ ����	

 � �̂ �������������������˘ ˜ ��˜ # ��˘ �ˇ ��	˘ # ��! ����# ˘ �˜ ���������! ' �# ˘ �˜ ��
�������! �˜ ��	���! �

 ˛ �̂ # �˜ �˘ ��˜ ˘ ���) ���# ���

 ° �̂ �������ˇ

 � �̂ ˇ ��������

���������

	
�������

�����

�
������

��
��

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�


�
�
�
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�


�
�
�
�
��

� 
�

�
!"

��
��

��
��

"�

�
�
�
	
�


�
�
�






�
#
�


$�
�
�
�
�
�





�
�


�
%
$�
��

�

°"
�
"̇
�

˙�
��

,˝
�

,�
 �
�

#
˜

,-�
./

0.
-12

0/
3

/0̂
!
�

!
-̌

45
67

/8
9.

-̇
�
�

˙:
�
�
�
ˇ

:˜
�
�
�
�

%:
˜
�
	
�
�
�
	

:˘
ˇ

ˇ
��
��

�
:˜

�
�
�
	

˘�
:#

�
ˇ
�
�
: 

*�
* 

 ˝
:#

:ˇ
0;<

/:
12

0/
3

/0̂
0<

9

��ˇ ����( ˘ �����

��

�
�
�
�
�
�
&
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
%

�
�


�
�
�
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�


�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�


�
�
�




�
�
�
'
�
�
$�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
$�
$�
�

��"�

��(�!(����

˘ �ˆ̋

˝ " ° ��=� � ��
	&�
�'$����
�#���'��$��

˝ " ° ��=� � ��
	&�
�'$����&�#���'��$��

�����
&��$��%&����$�����
������$�#�		�$������$���)

�
����������
&��$��������
����#��$��*�����	������#���

���
��$�'��#����$�����$���
*�
��	���$�$�$��)�
�

�
��

�%$��$�����
���$����)$�$���$��)�
�#$�#�#��$��$�#���#�
%����

����	������++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++

��%%&�$����'���	%����$
����
����

�4ˆ 	/ <;. ;48�ˇ / . 50;>9;48 ˇ ?9/

���ˇ �˜ ����%�$��������
�˘ 	&���ˇ �˘ # ��ˇ # ���

 �������˜ ��%�˜ �# # ��������������������˝ "̇ �"̇ �˙ �
˙ ������˜ ��%�˜ �# # �������$@̇�����˛ " ˛ "̇ �˙ ����������
˝ ������˜ ��%�˜ �# # �������$@̋�����° "�* "̇ �˙ ����������

Attachment E

88



�����������	
 ���� ��

�����������	
 ���� ��

����������	�	���
  ��� ��

����������	�	���
 ���� ��

˘ ˇ ˇ �������ˆ�ˆ�ˆ
 ˙  �� ��

 °

 ˛°

  ��� ��� "��
�( �	$���ˇ �	�ˇ ! �

��! ��	����	�ˇ ! �
 ˙ ˙ ��  �� "̇ �

�����������	
 ���� ��

�����������	
 ���� ��

����������	�	���
  ��� ��

����������	�	���
 ���� ��

˘ˇ ˇ �������ˆ�ˆ�ˆ
 ˙  �� ��

! �
˜  ˜  ˜  ˜  

 ���

 ˝ �˘

�

�

°

�
˝

 �

 �

�

*

 

˙

˙

˙

˝

�

˛

�� ˜  ˙

 �
˝$

�

�

 °

  ��� ��� "��

�( �	$���ˇ �	�ˇ ! �

��! ��	����	�ˇ ! �
 ˙ ˙ ��  �� "̇ �

 °�����! 	���ˇ ��˘ ˜ ��˜ # ���"������˜ �	������ �̂
˜ ���	����$����! ����˘ 	# �! 	˘ %����# ˘ �˜ ��
�������! �

 °������������˘ ˜ ��˜ # � �̂˜ ���	����$����! ���
�˘ 	# �! 	˘ %����# ˘ �˜ ���������!

��˘ �ˇ ��! ���˘ # �	�����˘ �����
˜ ���	�ˇ ˘ 	&�! 	˘ %

�����˘ ��ˇ �# ��˘ ���˘ ���������� �̂˜ ���	�
��! ���! 	˘ %

 �̂ ������˘ �ˇ ��! ���˘ # �# ��˘ ��	���ˆ

˙ �̂ ����! ����	��%���# ' �����	����ˇ ��˘ ���

˝ �̂ �������! �! 	���ˇ ��˘ ˜ ��˜ # �

� �̂ ����! 	���ˇ  �˘ ˜ ��˜ # �' ����˘ 	�˘ �����	������! 	���ˇ ��˘ ˜ ��˜ # ��
# ������������! �! 	���ˇ ��˘ ˜ ��˜ # ��# ˘ �˜ ���������! �˜ # ��( ����	�
˜ ��	���! �̂

˛ �̂ $���˘ 	ˇ '�����˙ "̆  ˆ�

° �̂ # ˜   � # ��˘ ��˜ ����! '�����˝ "̆ ˝ ˆ̇

� �̂ �����! �˘ 	ˇ �' �����˘ �����	�# ˘ ���˘ ˜ ��	��	�) ˆ

� �̂ �������! ����ˇ ��' ��	���˜ ��˘ ! ˘ �����ˇ ˘ # ˘ ! �

* �̂ �������˜ ��ˇ �	����$��������������! �$���ˇ ��! �˘ �ˇ �˘ ˇ ˇ �����

 � �̂ ������������! �˘ +��! ���������˘ ����'�˜ ���	�����˜ ��ˇ �$%�˘ 	˜ ����˜ �

  �̂ ˜ # ���������˘ ��! ˘ 	˘ ! ��ˇ ��	�����ˇ ˘ �����˜ ������ �̂���� "̆ �ˆ̇ �˘ �ˇ �
�"̆ �ˆ̇ ˆ

 ˙ �̂ �# ������˘ ˜ ��˜ # �����ˇ ����	����˜ ���	��������˜ �

 ˝ �̂ ��  ��˘ 	˘ �����˜ ����	� ����˘ ��������˘ ��$����# �����˜ ����	����˙ �
��˜ ����# ˘ ��# �# �˘ $�( ��˘ ˇ  ˘ ˜ ����	������	�˘ ˜ � �̂! 	���ˇ ��˘ ˜ ��˜ # ��
˘ 	���ˇ ��˜ ����	

 � �̂ �������������������˘ ˜ ��˜ # ��˘ �ˇ ��	˘ # ��! ����# ˘ �˜ ���������! ' �# ˘ �˜ ��
�������! �˜ ��	���! �

 ˛ �̂ # �˜ �˘ ��˜ ˘ ���) ���# ���

 ° �̂ �������ˇ

 � �̂ ˇ ��������

���������

	
�������

�����

�
������

��
��

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�


�
�
�
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�


�
�
�
�
��

� 
�

�
!"

��
��

��
��

"�

�
�
�
	
�


�
�
�






�
#
�


$�
�
�
�
�
�





�
�


�
%
$�
��

�

°"
�
"̇
�

˙�
��

,˝
�

,�
˝�
�

#
˜

,-�
./

0.
-12

0/
3

/0̂
!
�

!
-̌

45
67

/8
9.

-̇
�
�

˙:
�
�
�
ˇ

:˜
�
�
�
�

%:
˜
�
	
�
�
�
	

:˘
ˇ

ˇ
��
��

�
:˜

�
�
�
	

˘�
:#

�
ˇ
�
�
: 

*�
* 

 ˝
:#

:ˇ
0;<

/:
12

0/
3

/0̂
0<

9

��ˇ ����( ˘ �����

��

�
�
�
�
�
�
&
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
%

�
�


�
�
�
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�


�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�


�
�
�




�
�
�
'
�
�
$�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
$�
$�
�

��"�

��(�!(����

˘ �ˆ�

˝ " ° ��=� � ��
	&�
�'$���������'��$��

˝ " ° ��=� � ��
	&�
�'$���������'��$��

�����
&��$��%&����$�����
������$�#�		�$������$���)

�
����������
&��$��������
����#��$��*�����	������#���

���
��$�'��#����$�����$���
*�
��	���$�$�$��)�
�

�
��

�%$��$�����
���$����)$�$���$��)�
�#$�#�#��$��$�#���#�
%����

����	������++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++

��%%&�$����'���	%����$
����
����

�4ˆ 	/ <;. ;48�ˇ / . 50;>9;48 ˇ ?9/

���ˇ �˜ ����%�$��������
�˘ 	&���ˇ �˘ # ��ˇ # ���

 �������˜ ��%�˜ �# # ��������������������˝ "̇ �"̇ �˙ �
˙ ������˜ ��%�˜ �# # �������$@̇�����˛ " ˛ "̇ �˙ ��������������
˝ ������˜ ��%�˜ �# # �������$@̋�����° "�* "̇ �˙ ����������

89



�����������	
 ���� ��

�����������	
 ���� ��

����������	�	���
  ��� ��

����������	�	���
 ���� ��

˘ ˇ ˇ �������ˆ�ˆ�ˆ
 ˙  �� ��

 ��ˇ

˜  

˜  ˜  ˜  

����	��˜ ����	"�	��+�	�
��˜ ����	� �̂

����	��˘ˇ ˇ �����
�ˆ�ˆ�ˆ

  ˛ �� ��

��! ��	����	�ˇ ! �
 ˙ ˙ ��  �� "̇ �

˘ˇ ˇ �������ˆ�ˆ�ˆ
 ˙  �� ��

����	��˜ ����	"�	��+�	�
��˜ ����	� �̂�

����	��˘ ˇ ˇ �����
�ˆ�ˆ�ˆ

  ˛ �� ��

˘ˇ ˇ �������ˆ�ˆ�ˆ
 ˙  �� ��

˜  ˜  ˜  ˜  

 ���

 ˝ �˘

�� ˜  ˙

����	��˜ ����	"�	��+�	�
��˜ ����	� �̂

����	��˘ˇ ˇ �����
�ˆ�ˆ�ˆ

  ˛ �� ��

����	��˜ ����	"�	��+�	�˘ˇ ˇ ����������������������# ��
�	˜ �������	�����%����������˜ �		����˘ ˇ ˇ ������˘ �ˇ ����������
ˇ ���	���(���������˘˜ ��˘ �ˇ �! 	���ˇ ��˘˜ ��# �����	%�������

�����

	
�������

�����

�
������

��
��

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�


�
�
�
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�


�
�
�
�
��

� 
�

�
!"

��
��

��
��

"�

�
�
�
	
�


�
�
�






�
#
�


$�
�
�
�
�
�





�
�


�
%
$�
��

�

°"
�
"̇
�

˙�
��

,˝
�

,�
˛�
�

#
˜

,-�
./

0.
-12

0/
3

/0̂
!
�

!
-̌

45
67

/8
9.

-̇
�
�

˙:
�
�
�
ˇ

:˜
�
�
�
�

%:
˜
�
	
�
�
�
	

:˘
ˇ

ˇ
��
��

�
:˜

�
�
�
	

˘�
:#

�
ˇ
�
�
: 

*�
* 

 ˝
:#

:ˇ
0;<

/:
12

0/
3

/0̂
0<

9

��ˇ ����( ˘ �������"
����	��˘ ˇ ˇ �����

��˜ ��ˇ �ˇ

��

�
�
�
�
�
�
&
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
%

�
�


�
�
�
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�


�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�


�
�
�




�
�
�
'
�
�
$�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
$�
$�
�

��"�

��(�!(����

˘ �ˆ̨

�4ˆ 	/ <;. ;48�ˇ / . 50;>9;48 ˇ ?9/
 �������˜ ��%�˜ �# # ��������������������˝ "̇ �"̇ �˙ �

���ˇ �˜ ����%�$��������
��	&���ˇ �˘ # ��ˇ # ���

˝ " ° ��=� � ��˘ �ˆ̨
 	&�
�'$����
�#���'��$���()&�&
����$�$��

˝ " ° ��=� � ��˘ �ˆ̨
˙ 	&�
�'$���������'��$���()&�&
����$�$��

˝ " ° ��=� � ��˘ �ˆ̨
˝ 	&�
�'$���������'��$���()&�&
����$�$��

�����
&��$��%&����$�����
������$�#�		�$������$���)

�
����������
&��$��������
����#��$��*�����	������#���

���
��$�'��#����$�����$���
*�
��	���$�$�$��)�
�

�
��

�%$��$�����
���$����)$�$���$��)�
�#$�#�#��$��$�#���#�
%����

����	������++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++

��%%&�$����'���	%����$
����
����

˙ ������˜ ��%�˜ �# # �������$@̇�����˛ " ˛ "̇ �˙ ���
˝ ������˜ ��%�˜ �# # �������$@̋�����° "�* "̇ �˙ ����������

90



Tract B Weld County Business Park 
PUD, 1st Amendment (PUD2020-0001)
City Council
July 21st, 2020

Kira Stoller, Planner II
91



Background

• Request:
o Final PUD Amendment to allow for construction 

of 6,715 square foot building addition

• Weld County Business Park PUD:
o Adopted in June 1988

o Tract B was designated for commercial & 

industrial uses

92



Location
• Northwest corner of intersection of N 11th

Avenue & M Street

• Surrounding Land Uses

o North: Office (Weld County Administration)

o South: Rehab center (Alternative Homes for 

Youth)

o East: Emergency shelter (Guadalupe 

Community Center)

o West: Medical office (North Range 

Behavioral Health)

93



Site Data

• Subject site was previously 

approved for development of 

Weld County Ambulance 

Service Facility

• Applicant proposes to convert 

building into Weld County 

Coroner’s Office

94



Elevations
South

West

95



Elevations

East

North

96



Elevations (with future cooler enclosure)

East

North

97



Site Photos

Existing south & west elevations

Existing east elevation 98



Site Photos

Existing north elevation

99



Approval Criteria
Section 18.32.140(c)

Substantial Conformance with Final PUD
YES 1. Building Elevations

Align with material & design of surrounding structures.

YES 2. Landscaping
Slight reduction in lot coverage, but site will still contain 76% open space.

YES 3. Signage
Propose to revise sign regulations to comply with C-H zone district.

YES 4. Photometric Plan
Adding two additional freestanding signs, for a total of four on site.

YES 5. Parking
Stall count to be reduced by 12 spaces, but still meets minimum requirement.

100



Recommendation

Planning Commission 

• June 23, 2020

• APPROVAL (unanimous)

101



Questions?

102



City Council Worksession Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Council Agenda Summary 
July 21, 2020  

Agenda Item Number  13
Benjamin Snow, Economic Health & Housing Director, 970-350-9384 

Title: 

Strategic Housing Plan Progress/Update 

Background: 

Housing remains a top priority of the City of Greeley, as it is one of 8 key strategic 

foresight areas of the City Council’s Vision for 2040 identified earlier this year under 

the banner of ‘Your Home is Here’. 

Your Home is Here states that “In 2040, Greeley is a distinctive character-rich 

community known for its high-quality standard of living. Residents have access to an 

amazing variety of housing options including style, price, and location. Our unique 

neighborhoods are built around the village concept, featuring entertainment, retail, 

parks and dining options within a central, walkable location.’  

Because communities are largely defined by the type, style, and cost of housing it is 

important for Greeley to have a clear understanding of current housing conditions 

with strategies to shape future growth.  

Through a variety of policies, programs, and regulations, the type, number, and 

affordability of new and existing housing can be influenced. Housing was a key 

component of the Imagine Greeley Comprehensive Plan. However, due to the 

complexity of housing issues and its impact on community well-being, the Imagine 

Greeley Comprehensive Plan called for a deeper examination into housing policy 

through the development of a Comprehensive Housing Strategy. 

The creation of the Strategic Housing Plan took place during 2018, with the help and 

input from a Housing Accessibility Task Force, data assistance from outside 

consultants, and the support and analysis of city staff. The Housing Accessibility Task 

Force met five times during 2018 to discuss challenges facing Greeley’s housing 

market and brainstorm possible solutions. Working closely with city staff, the Housing 

Accessibility Task Force identified seven key constraints or challenges to housing 

affordability: 

1. Escalating cost of raw water;

2. Rising cost of construction and development related costs;

3. Lack of financing;

4. Lack of skilled labor;

5. Rising costs of existing housing;

103



City Council Worksession Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

6. Flat wages; and  

7. Missing homes not built during the Great Recession and Greeley’s residential 

downturn.  

 

The Task Force includes real estate professionals, affordable and market-rate housing 

providers, nonprofit and for-profit developers, and city staff and it remains active to 

advise on specific initiatives. 

 

The City Council adopted the Strategic Housing Plan in early 2019. The plan explores 

the challenges above and provides nine recommended strategies to address housing 

affordability and supply. These include: 

 

1. Amend the Development Code to promote housing choice;  

2. Minimize development costs for affordable housing;  

3. Engage alternative housing providers to build affordable housing;  

4. Improve the housing product mix;  

5. Address the impact of raw water cost on housing affordability;  

6 Complete subarea and neighborhood plans;  

7. Create more ownership, move-up, and executive housing options;  

8. Encourage vocational training, and apprentice programs for building trades;  

9. Facilitate development of manufactured home communities as an important 

affordable housing option.  

 

The action items listed in the plan each require separate and specific implementation 

plans. With this agenda item, staff will share the progress made since plan adoption. 

Decision Options: 

For information only.  

Attachments: 

Slide Deck 

Memos from Directors 

NoCo Housing Now Summary 

GIS Screenshot 

Improving Housing Affordability Handout 

Dry Utility Jurisdictional Comparison 

 

 

 

104



Community Development Department 
MEMORANDUM 

TO: Roy Otto, City Manager 

Becky Safarik, Assistance City Manager 

RE: Recap of 2019 Housing Plan Implementation work program 

FROM: Brad Mueller, Director Community Development 

DATE: 2/28/2020 

This memo provides an update of work completed for 2019 by the Community Development 
Department and is in advance of our next one-on-one meeting. The attached memo from last year 
lists the whole 2019 Housing Plan Implementation Work Program. 

Implementation/work item Status 
Evaluate costs and benefits of having City 
front-end sewer trunk lines 

Completed. Have worked with Water/Sewer to 
implement Local Improvement Districts for the 
landowners of Ashcroft Draw (Cobblestone) 
and the greater Lake Bluffs service area (i.e., 
Poudre Trunk Line). In addition, the on-going 
Sewer Master Plan seeks to identify 
development predictability; this information 
could be used to create economic development 
priority areas. 

Update the Redevelopment Resource Guide Completed. Seeking final approval/edits from 
EH&H before posting; otherwise is available 
for use. 

Adopt short-term rental (e.g. AirBnB) 
regulations 

Worksession with Council is March 3. Public 
and committee engagement is complete; final 
adoption will depend on Council feedback at 
the worksession. 

Implement the "Water Smart Neighborhood 
Policy" 

Nearly all details have been completed to pilot 
this concept with the Cardinal Acres 
subdivision (20th  Street & near 66th  Ave). 
Likely next pilot would be Cobblestone. 

Amend the Development Code for housing Preliminary elements have been identified 
(minimum lot size, subdivision requirements, 
etc.), but this will be fully implemented with 
the overall Development Code update. 

A City Achieving Community Excellence 

105



ATT. A c- H t\Yr 

"O'reeley 
Department of Economic Health & Housing 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Roy Otto, City Manager 

RE: 2019 Proposed Housing Plan Implementation Work Program 

FROM: Benjamin Snow, Director, Economic Health & Housing 

CC: Becky Safarik, Assistant City Manager 

Brad Mueller, Director, Community Development 

DATE: April 9, 2019 

In February, City Council adopted the City of Greeley Strategic Housing Plan. The Plan 
included a variety of potential strategies that were designed as ways to address the nine adopted 
Strategies and their sub-elements. We have reviewed these and recommend the following work 
program items for 2019. These were chosen based on a combination of significance to the main 
goal, existing department workload, and/or relative ease of implementation. 

Economic Health & Housing Department  
• Develop a reporting, monitoring and enforcement program for any deed-restricted affordable 

housing that results from other work program items. 
(Supports Strategy 1 and others. Any new programs that result in creating designated 
affordable housing will require a city monitoring program to ensure that they remain 
affordable and used by the targeted low-income population. GURA already does this with 
some of our existing programs. This role would be expanded.) 

Start Date: Now Target Completion Date: 2" Quarter 2019 

• Explore working with community land trusts to create a shared equity home ownership 
program. 
(Addresses Strategy 4: Improve the housing product mix. This would explore the basics of 
this concept.) 

Start Date: Now Target Completion Date: 3rd  Quarter 2019 

• Identify under-utilized sites that could be re-purposed for housing. 
(Addresses Strategy 6: Complete sub-area and neighborhood plans. This would create an 
inventory of potential sites; examples include churches with extra land holdings and the 
mall.) 

A City Achieving Community Excellence 

106



Start Date: Now Target Completion Date: 3rd  Quarter 2019 

Partner with one or more housing providers to construct attainable housing. 
(Addresses Strategy 3: Engage alternative housing providers. This would likely start with 
GURA, the High Plains Housing Development Corporation, and Habitat for Humanity, but 
would expand after 2019 to include others.) 

Start Date: Now Target Completion Date: 4th  Quarter 2019 

• Explore alternate home-building technology options for use in Greeley. 
(Addresses Strategy 9: 9. Facilitate development of manufactured home communities. This 
would provide a structured report on the possibility of attracting an emerging home-building 
technology company to Greeley.) 

Start Date: 3rd  Quarter 2019 Target Completion Date: 4th  Quarter 2019 

In coordination with Community Development Department  
a Evaluate the risks, costs, and benefits of having the City front-end required trunk lines which 

would be reimbursed with impact fees. 
(Addresses Strategy 2: Develop financial strategies that minimize development costs for 
affordable housing. This scenario may unfold with the proposed Lake Bluff development 
and would be evaluated for success.) 

Start Date: Now Target Completion Date: 3rd  Quarter 2019 

• Update the Redevelopment Resource Guide to include current pilot programs and incentive 
packages. 
(Addresses Strategy 2. This is a relatively easy item; updating it would make it more useable 
and accurate.) 

Start Date: 3r1  Quarter 2019 Target Completion Date: 3rd  Quarter 2019 

• Adopt short-term rental (e.g. AirBnB) regulations. 
(Addresses Strategy 1: Amend the Development Code to promote housing choice. Short-term 
rentals are competing with live-in housing. Also, topic is becoming a frequent citizen 
complaint.) 

Start Date: Now Target Completion Date: 4th  Quarter 2019 

• Implement the "Water Smart Neighborhood Policy" and the "Water Smart Common Area 
Policy" in conjunction with the Water & Sewer Department. 
(Addresses Strategy 5: Address the impact of raw water on housing affordability. Pilot 
programs are anticipated for a couple up-coming subdivisions.) 

Start Date: Now Target Completion Date: 4' Quarter 2019 

107



Amend the Development Code to incentivize the inclusion of affordable housing in new 
development. 
(Addresses Strategy 1: Amend the Development Code to promote housing choice. As an 
example, zoning height limits could be increased, if a development includes affordable 
housing.) 

Start Date: 3rd  Quarter 2019 Target Completion Date: 4t11  Quarter 2019 

In coordination with CMO and CEO  
• Work with realtors to explain/exploit existing down-payment assistance programs. 

(Addresses Strategy 7: Identify under-utilized sites that could be re-purposed for housing. 
This would enforce existing efforts, on the way to potentially developing more home 
ownership incentive programs after 2019. 

Start Date: Now Target Completion Date: 4)h  Quarter 2019 

Package and promote all existing housing programs, initiatives and incentives. 
(Addresses most Strategies. Using the Communication and Engagement Office, print and 
electronic materials would be produced that bring together all existing city-sponsored or city-
associated housing programs, with the goal of optimizing what already is in place.) 

Start Date: Now Target Completion Date: 4" Quarter 2019 

108



 
https://nocohousingnow.org/ 

A Call for Regional Housing Dialog 

The Fort Collins Board of REALTORS®, in support of the City of Fort Collins’ Affordable 
Housing Strategic Plan, has established NoCo Housing Now: A Call for Regional Housing 

Dialog. This campaign will encourage our local elected officials to consider regional dialog that 
identifies approaches to address housing affordability. 

This campaign seeks to assure that the critical regional issue of housing affordability is being 
discussed on a regional scale. FCBR is supporting this effort via outreach to local government 

agencies with an offer of support for the formation of a regional task group, or other similar 
approaches that bring our communities together. 

Now is the Time 

The Fort Collins Board of REALTORS® believe now is the time for municipalities and key 
stakeholders to come together to address housing affordability with regional cooperation in 

mind. 

History 

NoCo Housing Now is an effort begun by the Fort Collins Board of REALTORS® in conjunction 
with the City of Fort Collins and NoCo Home Builders Association to establish a regional dialog 

about housing affordability in Northern Colorado. 

From this initial effort, a regional coalition of the willing made up of over 50 partners, including 
13 different cities/towns and 2 different counties has been formed. The NoCo Housing Now 
Coalition is a blend of interests comprised of non-profits, city/county staff, elected officials, 
housing industry representatives, economic interests, grassroots members, small & large 

businesses, University stakeholders, and interested community members. 

The purpose of NoCo Housing Now is to serve as a convening group for discussion, 
partnerships, and intentional efforts to educate and address key issues related to housing 

affordability in Northern Colorado. 

 

109

https://nocohousingnow.org/


110



1 
 

Improving Housing Affordability - City of Greeley 
Top 20 List  
(Updated/Revised July 7, 2020) 

 
The following list was submitted by a group of Greeley developers to communicate 
opportunities that the housing construction and land development industries see for increased 
affordability.  It represents the collective ideas of several active single-family housing developers 
in the City.  City of Greeley staff has researched each of these considerations, with the following 
findings and responses, current as of July 7, 2020. 
 

 
Horizontal Construction Ideas: 
 

1. Reduction in the Right of Way Permit Costs (currently at $2,000 per lot, other 
jurisdictions at $700 - $1,000 per lot) 

Staff research:  The Greeley fee is set as cost recovery, designed only to cover the costs of 
administrating the permit and making the inspections (Public Works technician and Civil 
Inspector).  This fee could be reduced, but overages for associated costs would then need to 
be paid for through the General Fund (or other eligible revenue source).  In general, 
comparisons between jurisdictions are accounting for different services.  As such, it does not 
seem advisable to adjust these fees at this time. 

 
 

2. Change specifications for pipe bedding from washed 3/8"chip to squeegee (cost 
difference is approx. $15 per ton less) 

Staff research:  The City would consider alternative methods, which can be discussed during 
the design stage.  Squeegee, specifically, might be allowed under certain circumstances.  
Some considerations include that staff’s experience is that contractors cannot get 3/8” chip 
because it is not available; and, generally, the Water/Sewer Department prefers the Class B 
material (the 3/8” chip), because it is angular and locks better versus with squeegee, which 
is rounder and does not lock-in. Squeegee is acceptable for water line construction due to 
minor grade changes being acceptable for pressured pipe. The City will still require CDOT 
Class B or 3/8” chip or equivalent for all sewer line work; this is due to needing exact slopes 
and not wanting bellies in the pipe construction.  Water and Sewer staff are talking to local 
mining companies (Aggregate & Martin Marietta) to get an equivalent CDOT Class B product 
that is locally available and are working to update the specifications to reflect these 
changes. 

 
 

3. Change conduit specification from HDPE to Schedule 40 PVC (significant labor and 
material cost savings) 

Staff research:  As with the suggestion above regarding pipe bedding, alternative methods 
and materials can be proposed early in the design process.  HDPE remains the preferred 
conduit, however, because it is generally stronger and more flexible than PVC.  This serves 
long-term interests in that it helps when in the future someone accidently digs up the pipe; 
the pipe may not fully break if it is HDPE instead of PVC.  If the conduit is bored it will be 
HDPE. These conduits are for dry utilities just barely under the road so they are subject to 
getting hit by potholing that occurs after the roads are built, and they can be in the frost 

111



2 
 

zone and can break when the road settle.  The City’s focus is that we do not want to 
compromise quality and then create a long-term issue.  That said, there may be room to 
adjust and still meet the need, on a case-by-case basis.  Staff believes there are short 
distance conduit runs that might be best acceptable for installation with Schedule 160 or 80 
PVC.  However, staff does not believe that PVC will be more cost effective or preferable.   

 
 
 

4. Reduce construction water costs (other jurisdictions charge approximately $4 per 1,000 
gallons less) 

Staff research:   From an audit of other jurisdictions, $4/1Kgal is below the regional market and 
below cost recovery.  Greeley’s cost seems consistent with other jurisdictions.  Lowering the cost 
would shift the cost from new development to current rate-payers.  The Water & Sewer Department 
notes that construction water is a unique water service and priced high based upon risk and other 
factors.  Construction water generally does not have a permanent meter and has more risk 
associated with the provision of service. Metering this water from hydrants is on the honor system 
and sometimes does not have backflow prevention capability.   The construction water user has not 
paid a PIF or raw water, and there is no base service availability charge associated with other 
accounts.  Hydrant water service makes construction water available with risk on the City and 
prevents the builder from needed expensive water hauling and charges them only volumetric charge 
without any of the other costs.   The audits of some other Colorado jurisdictions were as follows: 

ELCO: $8.00/kgal 
Fort Collins/Loveland Water District: $8.00/kgal 
Fort Collins Utilities: $13.36/kgal 
Loveland Water: $5.96/kgal 
Denver Water: $12.16/kgal 

 
 

5. Change specifications for water line lowerings from Ductile Iron Pipe (DIP) to C900 PVC 
(significant labor and material cost savings) 

Staff research:  Both contractors and City prefer the C900 PVC. DIP or C900 PVC are both 
allowed by the City and its civil inspection team since they are equivalent products 
(coordinated with EDR and Civil Inspections).  Thee details and specifications have been 
updated. The City of Greeley has made this change, and the standards in the criteria manual 
are part of an update that is in progress. 

 

 
Vertical Construction Ideas: 
 

6. Ability to buy a single large tap to serve attached home products and split that tap into 
individually metered ¾” services 

Staff research:   The City does in fact allow this scenario in limited cases if the housing 
product that is being developed makes sense to develop in this manner.  This case-by-case 
decision is based on the type of housing product, density and the site.  In all cases, it is 
essential that taps are sized for the use and the appropriate amount or raw water or cash-
in-lieu of raw water is dedicated.  Current Municipal Code indicates that each single-family 
detached building has its own tap, which does not preclude the City from supporting what is 
being suggested here for single-family attached.  The relevant Code is as follows: 
 

112



3 
 

14.06.040 - Taps required; service line extensions prohibited. 
(a) Each detached single-family residential building, multi-family residential building, 

and non-residential building shall be served by a minimum of one (1) separate water 
tap and service line. Buildings with mixed residential and non-residential uses shall 
be served by separate water taps for the residential and non-residential 
components of the development. 

  
The Water & Sewer Department’s preference is that each housing unit has its own tap, 
which makes billing, service interruptions, and shut offs much easier to manage. The 
department also understands that some building sites are not conducive, mainly because of 
space availability, to having every unit served with a tap off a distribution line.  Additionally, 
under a graduated PIF schedule (which is being studied in the Development Impact Fee 
Study), the scenario that is described within this question does not provide any financial 
benefit to the builder. The city would charge the graduated PIF based off the size of the 
housing unit, regardless of how many taps are built to serve the housing units. 

 
 

7. Amend code to allow building of up to 5 attached townhome style units without 
requiring fire sprinkler systems 

Staff research:   Staff would not recommend this change.  Significant changes to the 
Residential Code regarding residential fire sprinklers results in changes to the ISO (Insurance 
Services Office) ratings, which has implications for all Greeley residents.  Furthermore, 
sprinkler systems in these types of structures are generally recognized to be an important 
safety feature and, since nearly all townhouse-style buildings are five units or less anyway, 
changing this standard would have the effect of eliminating this safety feature altogether.  
The Building Inspection and Fire Prevention Divisions of the City note evidence that 
residential fire sprinklers reduce the spread of fire, and the further potential impact on the 
attached dwellings.  However, it is important to distinguish the type of system required is 
not the same as is required for commercial; the system for townhomes are a combination 
fire sprinkler system, not a full out 13D system that requires separate taps, backflow 
devices, and annual testing – all of which would, in fact, be more expensive. 

 
 

8. Energy Code Testing/Inspections on up to every 10th home instead of every home 
Staff research:   Staff previously considered this suggestion, most recently and very 
specifically in the context of City Council’s recent adoption of the 2018 International Energy 
Code.  While the City understands that less inspections would require the builder to submit 
less tests, the challenge from a regulatory standpoint is unequal impacts – some builders 
would be subject to it, and others not.  That is, if you happen to be the tenth application 
coming in, then you would be subject – and have to make arrangements that were not 
otherwise planned.  If the regulation were per builder, then it would be predictable which 
the tenth unit was, and, unfortunately, that could lead to people “gaming” the system.  
Most importantly, adopting this standard for the Energy Code – that is, a sometime-
approach – calls into question all building inspections, which are not done by sampling, but 
through a comprehensive inspection every time of all elements. 

 
 
 

113



4 
 

Development Policy Ideas: 
9. Create a graduated Raw Water Requirement schedule based on lot size for homes built 

in communities without a non-potable system 
Staff research:  The raw water dedication calculation is essentially graduated based upon 
the lot size because the dedication per acre being divided by portion of the acre that each 
lot represents.  Small lots pay a small amount of water or cash-in-lieu, and large lots have a 
larger raw water requirement. By Code, typical single-family subdivisions are required to 
provide of 3 AF/Ac based upon a refined calculation of acreage.  Over recent years, the 
calculation of acres requiring dedication has been refined to reflect more efficient 
development and separate out land uses.  The raw water dedication requirement 
calculation now subtracts out roads, removes commercial and multi-family areas for a 
separate raw water dedication calculation based upon the specific commercial or multi-
family project. The Water & Sewer Department periodically reviews data on single-family 
residential raw water consumption.  Factors such as efficient plumbing fixtures, water smart 
irrigation system, water wise landscapes, conversions to non-potable water supplies, 
increased urban density and the cost of raw water are among the factors influencing the 
water needed for urban growth.   Because of the dedication calculation changes and 
increased density, the city has not seen data that would support a policy change.   
 
Staff has been working across city departments on a pilot project that would apply to 
clustered/non-standard single-family subdivisions.  For certain subdivisions that feature 
aggregated common areas and – typically – very small, non-individual, or new urbanist small 
individual single-family lots, a Water Smart pilot is being considered that would allow for a 
reduction in potable raw water dedication.  In this pilot scenario, deed restrictions would be 
placed on common areas and/or individual residential lots, legally limiting the amount of 
water usable to less than what would have been allowed under the city’s current custom lot 
water budget.  (Note that the water budget already is adjusted for lot size; this would be a 
limit beyond typical.)   

 
 

10. Create a standard Raw Water Requirement for homes built in communities with a non-
potable system (potable indoor use only) 

Staff research:   The City is reviewing this scenario and believes it is potentially attainable, 
but generally there have been none of these types of developments yet.  The total volume 
of raw water for dedication (potable plus non-potable supplies) remains the same as it 
would be in a 100% potable project.  The conceptual idea is that the potable raw water 
requirement or commensurate cash-in-lieu holds at 3 acre-feet/acre, and evaluated on the 
square footage for each lot, with the landscaped area served by non-potable subtracted out.  
It remains to be seen if this type of development can be economical given the additional 
infrastructure requirements; but the City invites the conversation on any such project or 
pilot. 

 

 
11. Create a graduated Non-Potable Raw Water Requirement schedule based on lot size for 

homes built in communities with a non-potable system where they connect Greeley's 
non-potable system 

114



5 
 

Staff research:   The City has been researching this scenario over the last year, with plans to 
continue reviewing the success of new policy using a Non-Potable Pilot Program. Because 
raw water dedication is evaluated on a per acre basis for the specific lot size, and the non-
potable raw water requirement of 3 AF/Ac is evaluated on the potentially irrigable acreage, 
Greeley essentially already has a graduated raw water requirement for non-potable water.  
However, the City would, under the Pilot, consider deed restricted projects that can 
demonstrate a lowered raw water requirement if the landscape plans shows low- or 
medium-water need landscaping. The Non-Potable Pilot Program details these options, 
found at: www.greeleygov.com/services/ws/development/non-potable . 

 
 

12. Create a graduated fee schedule for Water Plant Investment Fees based on the Potable 
Raw Water required for the home 

Staff research:   The City is currently contracted with Raftelis, a development impact fee 
consulting firm, to complete an update of the city’s development impacts fees (including 
PIFs) by October of this year (2020).  This process will include community engagement 
opportunities for developer input.  However, the City recommended a graduated fee 
schedule based on lot size, a technique that Raftelis indicated already that they supported. 

 
 

13. Create a graduated fee schedule for Sewer Plant Investment Fees based on the Potable 
Raw Water required for the home 

Staff research:   As with the Water Plant PIF, the City supports evaluating the technical 
merits of implementing a graduated Sewer PIF fee schedule based on a metric that would 
correlate to sewer contribution from a given property.  Examples of correlated factors may 
be the number of plumbing fixture units or home square footage, and could be further 
evaluated as part of the current Development Impact Fee Study update. Based upon current 
data, Staff does not perceive the differences between large and small households on 
sanitary sewer flows to be significant enough to merit a graduated scale.  

 
 

14. Create a graduated fee schedule for Non-Potable Water Plant Investment Fees (PIF's) 
based on the Non-Potable Raw Water required for a home. 

Staff research:  On a dedicated irrigation taps, the fee is currently graduated based upon 
acreage and landscape flow demands.  Non-potable PIFs are approximately 70% of a potable 
water PIF, and large common areas, parks and schools are obvious opportunities for non-
potable supplies for irrigation use. For dedicated house to house non-potable systems, there 
requires much more infrastructure per unit and these projects have been difficult to justify 
in economic terms.  The City is considering other possibilities for cluster development or 
projects with common front yard irrigation where a single non-potable tap and an 
associated PIF could be calculated for that total irrigable area.    
 
The City has been researching this scenario over the last year, coordinating technical 
evaluation within the 2020 Impact Fee Study and will consider the potential of a revised 
schedule as part of participation in a Pilot Program.  Non-potable plant investment fees will 
generally be charged for larger swaths of irrigated land, but in cases where non-potable is 
serving home lots, the total PIF paid for that lot (both potable and non-potable) will not 

115

http://www.greeleygov.com/services/ws/development/non-potable


6 
 

exceed the potable PIF.  Refer to the Non-Potable Pilot Program on the following webpage: 
www.greeleygov.com/services/ws/development/non-potable . 

 
 

15. Create policy to allow drilling of new wells to supply non-potable systems with 
augmentation provided by the City of Greeley and regional recharge ponds 

Staff research:   This proposal presents some significant challenges for the City.  Greeley’s 
current water right decrees do not allow for augmentation of future well sites. A water 
court application would have to be filed for an augmentation plan, costing up to $200,000, 
and it would have to be managed by city staff.  Secondly, augmentation supplies are limited 
in quantity and any excess supply Greeley has is a source of revenue.  Alternatively, Greeley 
is making significant investments in non-potable infrastructure and updating its Non-Potable 
Master Plan.  Developing non-potable water resources and a robust system of storage and 
delivery infrastructure is an important part of the City’s long range strategic planning.  There 
are several multi-million dollar capital projects planned to expand the City’s non-potable 
capacity.  Additionally, Water & Sewer and Community Development have been working on 
non-potable policy that includes reduced plant investment fees (PIFs) for non-potable 
irrigation taps, a reduced non-potable raw water dedication cash-in-lieu fee and financial 
collaboration with the City.  Municipal code can and should preclude any property owner 
within Greeley from having a drinking water well for potable uses.  
 

 
16. Create policy to fix the cash-in-lieu costs for a development (suggested structure would 

have a set time frame to purchase and cost escalators built into it) [clarification: cash-in-
lieu for potable raw water is the reference] 

Staff research:    
The City is willing to reconvene conversations with the development community regarding 
the cash-in-lieu program. The City’s cash-in-lieu program is priced preferentially to the 
current water market costs because the cash-in-lieu program allows the builder and 
developer community to buy into the City’s historic water resource portfolio.The City’s 
water resource portfolio has been acquired over decades of investment by the City’s 
existing customers.  Water & Sewer’s cash-in-lieu policy evolved in 2019 to allow for 
payment of raw water at the time of building permit, thereby reducing carrying costs and 
market volatility risks associated with an upfront raw water dedication at the time of 
platting. The City would discuss and consider certain performance metrics that would have 
to be met for a particular development to have their cash-in-lieu costs defined for future 
years.  There is an annual cost to the City of early acquisition and holding valuable water 
assets that are not dedicated to an end use. Sound financial stewardship and rate making 
best practices say that costs should be recovered and reinvested to the benefit of all users 
on the municipal water system.   Therefore, a fixed cost for specific filings would need to 
include some type of takedown schedule and a defined annual adjustment to cover city debt 
service on the water resources and any other applicable costs. This schedule would likely be 
addressed in a development agreement and would have strict sunset provisions. 
 
The following code provision allows the City to vary from the norm: 
 
 
 

116

http://www.greeleygov.com/services/ws/development/non-potable


7 
 

 
14.06.190 - Special agreements approved by City Council. 
The provisions of this Chapter 14.06 shall not preclude the City Council from approving 
special agreements with applicants for water service regarding the requirements for 
development within the City.  (Ord. 39, 2019 §1(Exh. A), 9-17-2019) 

 
The circumstances under which a fixed cash-in-lieu price would be considered are 
undefined, but it would have to fit the City’s housing or economic development goals and 
meet utility cost recovery principles. Water and Sewer staff would not make a choice like 
this on its own, but in conjunction with Community Development, Economic Health and 
Housing, the City Manager’s Office, the Water and Sewer Board, and City Council.  

 
 

17. Create a cost sharing policy for arterial roadways 
Staff research:   The City is currently contracted with Raftelis, a development impact fee 
consulting firm, to complete an update of the city’s development impacts fees (including 
PIFs) by October of this year.  This process will include opportunities for developer input.  
One topic planned for discussion is the methodology for transportation impact fees.  
Conceptually this may not result in significantly different rates, since those are based on 
actual impacts from new demand to the system; however, when and how arterials are 
accounted for could change. 

 
 

18. Create a cost sharing policy for other offsite improvements 
Staff research:   The City is starting to re-introduce Local Improvement Districts (LIDs) that 
would support major infrastructure elements for new development that are specifically for a 
limited area of the City, such as a sewer lift station for a specific sub-basin or a new large 
capacity trunk sewer main that makes service available in a new sub-basin.  This LID tool is 
consistent with Council’s position on growth paying its way, and the City being a partner in 
facilitating that infrastructure.  This tool is proposed for the Sharkstooth Bluff and Ashcroft 
Draw drainage areas initially, and it allows developers to buy a proportionate share of their 
infrastructure, without having to carry the full burden of being the first (and potentially 
only) contributor to an initial infrastructure element that may be larger than needed for 
their development.   

 

 
19. Clarify the development process and commit to timelines for each stage of the process 
Staff research:   Community Development, which administers the Development Review 
process for the city, has long had performance goals associated with the development 
process.  Generally, these are three weeks turnaround for the initial review of most land use 
cases, and two weeks for subsequent resubmittals.   In the case of Building Permit reviews, 
the goal for Commercial building plans is 20 working days, as an example.  Highlights of 
various performance metrics are found in the City Manager’s regular reports at 
http://greeleygov.com/government/cmo/work-program, and the Community Development 
Director can provide copies of monthly and year-end performance statistics for all 
Department activities upon request. 

 

117

http://greeleygov.com/government/cmo/work-program


8 
 

 
20. Simplify/Shorten the development process (we will seek to give you specific examples as 

we go forward) 
Staff research:   The Community Development Department adopted a multi-faceted 
software tool called TRAKiT in 2018, which provides real-time tracking and data for 
applicants, on-line submittals, and – on the staff side – automated workflow and 
accountability tools.  In adopting this tool, staff rigorously reviewed the development review 
and permitting processes to find ways to shorten, improve, clarify, and standardize them.  
Significant changes and documentation were made; these workflow documents can be 
provided upon request.  Despite significant changes at the time, the Department commits to 
continuously looking for process improvements yet today, now under the city-wide initiative 
of Operational Excellence.  A short list of these efforts include attracting more experienced 
staff, standardizing and improving training, developing Standard Operating Procedure 
manuals, conducting customer surveys. 
 

 
Attachment A  Jurisdiction Comparison of Dry Utility/Right-of-Way Permit Fees 
 

118



Dry Utility Jurisidictional Comparison
Jurisdiction Requirements

Greeley
Based on actual costs from contractors for the infrastructure placed in the ROW.  It 
varies depending on each project. 

Eaton
Erie

Evans

Requires permit for ROW, but not easements; $65 base fee for <=25sf and $13.50 for 
every additional 25 sf      Website:  
https://www.evanscolorado.gov/sites/default/files/fileattachments/public_works/page
/951/city_of_evans_row_excavation_permit_2019.pdf

Firestone

Frederick

The Town does have a permit for work that occurs in and adjacent to the right-of-way. 
The permit and fee schedule (Chapter 11 – Streets, Sidewalks and Public Property) are 
available on our website but a copy is also attached. The Town’s Right-of-Way Permit 
has a non-refundable fee of $150, plus a refundable deposit based on the type and 
amount of work being done similarly based on area, quantity and length.

Ft. Collins

Ft. Lupton We do have a permit requirement through Public Works for working within the ROW

Johnstown
Don’t require a permit to work in our easements, to my knowledge. We do issue a ROW 

permit for construction/work.  ROW application is located:  
https://www.fortluptonco.gov/DocumentCenter/View/3289/Public-Works-Permit-PDF

Larimer County

Longmont

Before a Right-of-Way Permit is issued, the applicant shall provide a current Certificate 
of Insurance for:
• Commercial General Liability
• Limits: $350,000 / person, $1,000,000/occurrence;ermit applications for private 
infrastructure (i.e. underdrain systems or fiber optics) will require both a Work in the 
Right-of-Way permit and Infrastructure Permit. An Infrastructure Permit will require 
additional review time, fees, and added requirements.Infrastructure Permit applications 
are not available online. The Infrastructure Permit Guide will provide you with the steps 
necessary for permit issuance. 
The Certificate of Insurance shall include the City of Longmont, its Officers, Agents, and 
Employees as “Additional Insureds”    Permit: 
https://www.longmontcolorado.gov/home/showdocument?id=1592

Loveland  Location of ROW fees

We do have a work in the right-of-way permit (question #1).  Len Marques handles 
these.  Yes we do have a ROW Permit for any work being performed within the Rights-
Of-Way of the City of Loveland. This includes alley ways, and private roadways (so they 
meet our standards of repair per Code). Here is a link to our ROW Permit and all the 
questions frequently asked.  The link:  
http://www.cityofloveland.org/departments/public-works/streets/permits  the quick 
version of the fees are on the ROW Permit for quick reference. I have included or 
attached the fee schedule for the rates, fines, etc.

Thornton

Weld County

The Right-of-Way Use Permit is a tool to help regulate unauthorized obstructions of, 
excavations in, and use of the County’s rights-of-way and easements by utilities and line 
providers by requiring permits for ALL construction activities within the Weld County 
rights-of-way, whether gravel or paved, and including all public drainage easements. A 
Right-of-Way Use Permit grants a permit holder permission to occupy, excavate, survey, 
perform locations, or construct facilities within the County rights-of-way or easement, 
and provide for the subsequent restoration upon completion.    These permits have a 
flat fee, but it varies.

Windsor

119



Housing Plan 
Progress/Update
Benjamin Snow, Director, Economic Health & Housing
Brad Mueller, Director, Community Development

July 21, 2020

120



121



NoCo Housing Now

122



123



124



125



126



Dry Utility 
Jurisdictional 
Comparison

127



128



Questions?

Benjamin Snow, Director, Economic Health & Housing
Brad Mueller, Director, Community Development

129



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Council Agenda Summary 
July 21, 2020  

Agenda Item Number 14

Key Staff Contact: Roy Otto, City Manager, 970-350-9750 

Title: 

COVID-19 Update 

Summary: 

There will be a brief update to Council regarding COVID-19. 

130



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Council Agenda Summary 
July 21, 2020 

Agenda Item Number 15

Key Staff Contact: Cheryl Aragon, Interim City Clerk, 970-350-9742 

Title: 

Appointment of applicants to the Civil Service Commission, Commission on Disabilities, 

Construction Trades Advisory & Appeals Board, Downtown Development Authority, 

Judicial Review Board, Museum Board, and Youth Commission 

Summary: 

Council appointment is needed to the above-mentioned boards and commissions due 

to vacancies and term expirations.  Staff continues to actively recruit to fill all vacant 

positions. 

In addition to the traditional appointment to the Downtown Development Authority 

(DDA), the DDA is recommending that Mike Ketterling be appointed as an ex-

officio/non-voting member of the DDA. This requires a 2/3 vote of the sitting members 

of the DDA and approval by City Council (per DDA by-laws). The draft minutes from 

the June 18, 2020, DDA meeting have been attached to provide proof of the 2/3 vote 

by the DDA to appoint Mr. Ketterling as an ex-officio/non-voting member. This action 

can be found on page 3 of the draft minutes. 

Fiscal Impact: 
Does this item create a fiscal impact on the City of Greeley? No 

If yes, what is the initial, or, onetime impact? 

What is the annual impact? 

What fund of the City will provide Funding? 

What is the source of revenue within the fund? 

Is there grant funding for this item? N/A 

If yes, does this grant require a match? 

Is this grant onetime or ongoing? 

Additional Comments: 

Legal Issues:   

The City Attorney’s Office reviewed the applications and advised of potential conflicts 

of interest.   

It should be noted that there is a possibility that the applicants currently serve as a 

volunteer on a board or commission besides the one they are applying to.  It is also 

important to point out to the applicants that there are always potential conflicts that 

exist with business and investments, current jobs or relatives and family members 

131



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

coming before the Board or Commission. 

 

Should such conflicts arise, the Board or Commission member simply excuses 

themselves from that particular item but such a potential conflict does not preclude 

anyone from serving on a Board or Commission in general, just that particular agenda 

item. 

Other Issues and Considerations: 

Not applicable. 

Applicable Council Priority and Goal: 

Infrastructure & Growth: Establish the capital and human infrastructure to support and 

maintain a safe, competitive, appealing and successful community. 

Decision Options:  

1) Appoint or reappoint the individuals to serve on applicable board or commission; 

or 

2) Direct staff to re-advertise applicable vacancy. 

Council’s Recommended Action:  

No motion is necessary.  The City Council’s Policies and Protocol authorize appointment 

of Board and Commission members by written ballot, which can be used in lieu of a 

motion or voice vote for individual or multiple appointments.  This policy was adopted 

by Council as a time-savings measure.  Accordingly, a ballot is attached for Council’s 

use in making appointments.  Candidates receiving a majority vote (at least 4 votes) 

are appointed with no further action needed by Council. 

Attachments: 

Ballot 

July 2020 Boards and Commissions Transmittal Summary 

Draft DDA Minutes (June 18, 2020) 

 

132



Page 1 of 1

City of Greeley
Boards & Commissions
Appointment Ballot
July 21, 2020

Susan Knoeckel JASON HILL (I)
(RECRUIT FOR ADDITIONAL APPLICANTS) GERALD SHADWICK (I)

(Recruit For Additional Applicants)

OLIVIA CYTRYNOWICZ Mallory Mattivi
Bernadette Lambert MARK MOODY
Lauren Varley (Recruit For Additional Applicants)
(Recruit For Additional Applicants)

MYRNA WEIS-CALDERON
DON HOBART (I) (RECRUIT FOR ADDITIONAL APPLICANTS)
(Recruit For Additional Applicants)

COOPER ANDERSON
Lyndsey Crum
Jeff Dyke
Andrew Feinstein
(Recruit For Additional Applicants)

Mike Ketterling
(Recruit For Additional Applicants)

Incumbent = (I)

Museum Board

Youth Commission
2 Vacancies

1 Vacancy

Commission on Disabilities
1 Vacancy

Construction Trades Advisory & Appeals Board
1 Vacancy

Downtown Development Authority

Downtown Development Authority (Ex-Officio)
1 Vacancy

1 Vacancy

Applicants for the boards and/or commission listed below are in alphabetical order 
and recommendations from the interviewing team are shown in bold. 

**********  BALLOT  **********

Civil Service Commission
1 Vacancy

Judicial Review Board
2 Vacancies

133



 City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 
 

Boards & Commissions Transmittal 
 

July 10, 2020 
Key Staff Contact: Jerry Harvey, Assistant City Clerk, 350-9746 
 
Interview Date  Council Interview Team   Council Appointment Date 
July 13, 2020      Councilmembers Clark and Payton                   July 21, 2020 
 
Boards and Commissions Being Interviewed 

• Civil Service Commission 
• Commission on Disabilities 
• Construction Trades Advisory Board 
• Downtown Development Authority 

• Judicial Review Board 
• Museum Board 
• Youth Commission 

 
Council’s Recruitment and Qualifications Policy 
General recruitment efforts shall be made with special measures being taken to balance ward representation 
and attract minority and special population applicants.  Generally, volunteers will be limited to serving on one 
board or commission at a time.  (14.2. (c)(2)  City Council, Policies and Protocol) 
 
Demographic information of existing board members and any specialty requirements are contained within the 
attached Membership Rosters.   
 
Legal Issues 
The City Attorney’s Office reviewed the applications and the attached memorandum addresses any potential 
conflicts of interest.   
 
It should be noted that there is a possibility that the applicants currently serve as a volunteer on a board or 
commission besides the one they are applying to.  It is also important to point out to the applicants that there 
are always potential conflicts that exist with business and investments, current jobs or relatives and family 
members coming before the Board or Commission.   
 
Should such conflicts arise, the Board or Commission member simply excuses themselves from that particular 
item but such a potential conflict does not preclude anyone from serving on a Board or Commission in general, 
just that particular agenda item. 
 
Applicable Council Goal or Objective 
Infrastructure & Growth – Establish the capital & human infrastructure to support & maintain a safe, competitive, 
appealing, and dynamic community. 
 
Decision Options 

1. Recommend candidates for appointment; or 
2. Direct staff to re-advertise applicable vacancy.  

 
Attachments   

1. Interview Schedule  
2. Conflict Memorandum from City Attorney’s Office 
3. Sample Ballot  
4. Membership Rosters & Input from above mentioned Boards and Commissions  
5. Applications of those being considered for interview and/or considered for appointment 

 
 
Transmittal reviewed by: _______ Roy Otto, City Manager     _______Cheryl Aragon, Interim City Clerk 

DocuSign Envelope ID: D07C0BED-1B9B-4C2D-81E7-532B7C41CA8C

134



1 
 

Greeley Downtown Development Authority 
Minutes – Board of Directors Meeting Virtual Zoom Meeting – June 18th, 2020 

 
Board Members in Attendance: Phil Grizzle, Chair & Zoe’s Café & Events; Drew Notestine, Vice 
Chair/Secretary & Thomas & Tyler LLC; Ken Schultz, Treasurer; Mike Ketterling, Northern 
Engineering; Linda Winter, Accessories With A Flair!...and Hair; Tommy Butler, Greeley City 
Council; Justin Ghofrani, Kress Cinema & Lounge; Brian Seifried, Luna’s Tacos & Tequila; 
Logan Richardson, Richmark Companies; Kristin Zasada, Greeley City Council; Tom Grant, 
Grant & Hoffman; Matt Anderson, Ancon Construction 
 
Additional Attendees: Becky Safarik, City of Greeley; Steve Moreno, Weld County 
Commissioner; Andrew Wronkoski, Greeley Police Department 
 
DDA Staff in Attendance: Bianca Fisher, Executive Director; Karen Baumgartner, Project 
Coordinator 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Meeting Called to Order: 
Phil Grizzle called the meeting to order at 7:34 am 
 
Minutes: 
Phil Grizzle referenced the May DDA Minutes for approval. Drew Notestine moved to approve, 
Tom Grant seconded, motion carried. 
 
Safety Report from the Greeley Police Department: 
Officer Andrew Wronkoski reported: 

• The number of calls is still down citywide but there was a call from a woman who was 
stopped at the stoplight at 9th Street & 8th Avenue when someone tried to open her car 
door. Remember to keep your doors locked 

• Demonstrations went off without a hitch because we have a good community. The GPD 
was ready if there were any problems but they were not needed 

• They do have one officer on quarantine, but you will see the Downtown officers walking 
around and the SRO’s are downtown on their bikes. 

• As always, Officer Wronkoski reminded everyone that they should call if they have any 
issues or concerns 

• Becky Safarik let Officer Wronkoski know that there might be another rally this weekend 
in Lincoln Park 

• Bianca let Officer Wronkoski know that we have gotten feedback that there is a lot more 
graffiti/tagging downtown and was wondering if it might be a good idea to see if the 
City’s Graffiti Removal team could try match color a little better 

• Steve Moreno wanted to echo the comments about how proud the County is of Greeley 
and how well the protests went 

• Drew Notestine asked Officer Wronkoski if open container has been a problem in the 
park and downtown; Officer Wronkoski said that is a hard question to answer because 
it’s at officer discretion on how to handle it but you tend to see the same people over and 
over and it’s not more of an issue than it’s been in the past 

 
Downtown Open Consumption Ordinance presentation from Becky Safarik:  
The City is currently offering a Temporary Operational Opportunity where restaurants and bars 
may expand their premises until September 11th. Turnaround time to get this implemented is 1-3 
days or 7-8 days if it includes alcohol; all fees have been eliminated or underwritten.  

135



2 
 

The Downtown Restaurant Proposal for an Open Consumption Ordinance includes: 
• 8th & 9th Street plazas, including the Chase Plaza and the walkway, would be closed 

100% of the time while the ordinance is in effect to create a food/drink court that would 
operate from 11 am-midnight Monday-Friday and Saturday-Sunday from 8am-Midnight 

• Cannot be part of Go Cup process because that is a different set of rules, but it means 
that anyone may seat themselves in the plaza seating area at any time, can drink 
alcohol in this area in an open container with the only restriction being that the container 
cannot be glass, and consumption of food and drink in this area does not have to 
originate from the downtown businesses 

• In addition to passing the ordinance, the City must issue a Revocable Permit which 
requires a proposed seating plan, maintenance commitment, insurance, and signage 
noting the extent of the allowed alcohol consumption area 

• Whoever is responsible for the permit, which will most likely be the GDPA, will be 
required to get tables and chairs, make sure that tables are not pulled together, that 
trash is taken care of, and that all rules are followed because the permit can be revoked 
at any time 

• Tables can be set up around the plaza and in front of businesses, there must be a well-
developed pedestrian corridor to get the businesses, and the City would hope that the 
group would place tables in consultation with businesses along the street 

• Behaviors like over consumption or public disturbances would be managed by calling 
GPD but smoking is allowed and people can solicit donations and petitions 

• Council introduced the amended ordinance on June 9th, a notice was published, the 
DDA shared information summary information and a copy of the introduced ordinance to 
the downtown community, and a Public Hearing for the Ordinance will be on Tuesday 
and council will make their decision 

Brian Seifried presented from the perspective of 14 of the eating/drinking establishments 
Downtown who are still at 50% capacity with traffic that is still light and who hold a fear that not 
all of them will survive 

• Want to use space as community space to provide the folks of Greeley with something 
to do this summer, and the goal is to provide a safe area for the community so closing 
the streets would be most conducive to obtaining that goal. 

• The group would take turns to clear trash, sanitize and provide security for the majority 
of the time but would be hiring security, and possibly someone to help with trash, from 6 
pm-midnight on Friday and Saturday 

• The group wants to make sure they are working with other businesses to ensure there 
are pedestrian walkways 

• Hope to get folks to start thinking about Downtown again and would like to ask if the 
board would share support for the ordinance with City Council  

A discussion followed Becky and Brian’s presentations that included discussions about who the 
applicant would be, concerns about closing down the streets when people are still handling daily 
needs with other businesses downtown, the need to be sensitive to the needs of the other 
businesses and parking, the need to make sure that everyone is heard, the suggestion to draft a 
good neighbor agreement that addresses common sense items/rules such as trash, noise, etc. 
and where to go if there is a problem, the clarification that the space in front of bars and 
restaurants along 8th and 9th Avenues would not be included, the restaurant/bar group’s desire 
to make this a to make sure that this is not a drain on the DDA staff, and whether this might lead 
to problems with other areas of the City. At the end of the discussion, Brian Seifried moved to 
approve DDA staff to draft and submit a letter of support to Greeley City Council in regard to the 
proposed Open Consumption ordinance being proposed for the 8th and 9th Street Plazas, Mike 
Ketterling seconded, motion passed. 

136



3 
 

 
City update from Becky Safarik: 
Becky Safarik reported: 

• Greeley Area Recovery Fund is still available for businesses 
• The City is following state rules about what facilities can be opened at what level, are 

considering budget concerns regarding bringing back furloughed employees, and are 
actively pursuing CARES funding to help with costs; re-opening dates for the following 
City facilities in downtown are: 

o Rec Center – September 1st 
o Senior Center – August 1st 
o UCCC – Indefinitely closed 
o Museums – Not for while 
o Ice Haus – July 1st 

• Protests were well organized and very peaceful, and the Human Relations Commission 
wants to continue the constructive dialogue and will start a series of forums on this topic 

• University District Committee is working on plans to help 16th Street businesses with 
increased capacity and will begin re-paving/re-stripping 9th Avenue 

 
Executive Director Report from Bianca Fisher: 
Bianca Fisher reported: 
Personnel/Office Update 

• Alison Hamling has been placed on paid administrative leave effective June 17 until the 
Board can hold a closed meeting to discuss recent comments made on social media 

• Bianca will send out a doodle poll to the board to get a special meeting in place to 
discuss what the next moves will be 

• DDA office officially reopened full time on Tuesday, May 26th; remote working will 
continue when/if needed 

Board Members 
• We are excited that Logan and Linda have been reappointed by City Council this past 

Tuesday evening; they are both valuable members of our Board 
• Mike Ketterling, whose final term expires next year, has offered his official resignation as 

a voting board member to make room for an excellent candidate that has stepped 
forward with an interest in serving on our board. Mike’s letter of resignation is included in 
the board packet and, if accepted, he will become an ex-officio board member. Tom 
Grant moved to accept Mike Ketterling’s letter of resignation from the DDA Board and 
appoint him to an ex-officio, non-voting Board member through the remainder of his final 
term, set to expire in June 2021, Ken Schultz seconded, motion carried. 

Finances 
• Review TIF Cash Flow 

Economic Development/Business Support 
• Working with Brindle Marketing on finalizing concept to launch campaign for Downtown 

Greeley re-opening 
• Working with the restaurant/bar group as they explore options of expanding outdoor 

dining and drinking; City Council will hold public hearing on June 23 about a proposed 
“Open Consumption” ordinance that would effectively close 8th and 9th Streets  

• Engaged legal to draft TIF agreement for The 609 Studios; owner will be converting 
ground level retail to additional residential units 

• Please fill out the Census and encourage others to do the same—Greeley is only at 59% 
response rate and this will impact the funds we receive for our community 

Public Realm 

137



4 
 

• The committee has approved the request from Armando Silva for an increase rate to re-
do the Einstein mural; he will submit a new design and potentially begin painting in July 

• Finalizing wayfinding and signage plan with BHA—3 monument entry signs & several 
smaller wayfinding signs; they should be shared with the Board next month 

• All planters have been planted and will be maintained by Happy Life Gardens for the 
season 

• Top Gun Pressure Washing has completed the comprehensive annual plaza cleaning 
and will continue to clean the alley and walkthrough once a month through September 

• Bill continues to be furloughed until an appropriate time to come back to work doing part 
time maintenance for the DDA 

• Keep an eye on the DDA website as we will be adding an interactive map of all the art in 
downtown—kudos to Karen for compiling this extensive list! 

Promotion & Community Partnerships 
• Asked to be a part of the City of Greeley's Long-Term Recovery Committee and 

attended first introductory meeting 
• Meet twice a month with other DDA directors in Colorado to discuss and brainstorm 

issues and opportunities as it relates to post-COVID reopening through Downtown 
Colorado Inc (DCI) 

• Still meeting regularly with local partners (City, Chamber, Upstate, SBDC, NoCo 
communities) to stay on top of business resources and current information 

• Attended the University District Zoom meeting to learn about the updated status of the 
16th Street project and discuss COVID impacts as it relates to UNC, the City, and 
downtown 

• Continue to hold virtual GDA meetings to hear how our downtown businesses are doing; 
the hope is to move to in-person next month  

• Shared about COVID-related impacts and how our district has responded at the BizWest 
editorial board 

Business Updates 
Now Open: 

• Brooklyn Finds Design Co.- 918 1/2 9th Avenue 
• Weld Trust- 813 8th Avenue 

Recently Closed: 
• Tony Roma's- 701 8th Street 
• Doug's Hang Up- 818 9th Street 

Property Updates 
Recently Sold: 

• 1014-1020 9th Street (Lincoln Plaza Annex)- $2,868,000 on 5/13 to LoHi FC LLC 
For Sale: 

• 728 16th Street (Roma’s)- $498,000; 1,945 SF 
• 1619 8th Avenue (former Cisneros)- $165,000, 720 SF 
• 930 8th Avenue (AIM Global NoCo)- $1,050,000; 8,000 SF 
• 1120 6th Avenue (old Ice House Building)- $1.8M; 29,000 SF 

For Sale or Lease: 
• Various 8th Avenue properties (1024, 1130, 1215, 1228, 1235, 1309, 1320, 1516 8th 

Avenue)- price negotiable, range of SF, seeking best and highest use  
Retail/Commercial for Lease: 

• 810 8th Street (former Collins, Liu & Assoc.)- 5,100 SF; $7/SF 
• 800 8th Avenue, Ste. 135 & 140- 285-5,493 SF; $16-$18/SF NNN 
• 807 17th Street, Unit C, G & H- 1,328-4,003 SF; $6.50-$13.50/SF 
• 1540 & 1640 8th Avenue (new Maddie Apts)- commercial endcaps; $30/NNN 

138



5 
 

Weld County Updates from Steve Moreno:   
Steve Moreno reported that things going well and moving forward at the County. 
 
Public Realm Update from Mike Ketterling: 
Mike Ketterling reported that Bianca had covered most of the Public Realm information during 
her repot, but he did mention that we are still working on wayfinding signage and should be 
seeing something about that soon. He also mentioned that we would continue with alley 
cleanings.  
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:59 am  

139



Council Agenda Summary 

July 21, 2020 

Agenda Item Number 16

Title 

Scheduling of Meetings, Other Events 

Summary 

During this portion of the meeting the City Manager or City Council may review the 

attached Council Calendar or Worksession Schedule regarding any upcoming 

meetings or events. 

Attachments 

Council Meeting/Worksession Schedule 

Council Meetings/Other Events Calendar 

140



Date Description Sponsor Placement/Time
Ordinance ‐ Intro ‐ Stoneybrook Subdivision Filing No. 1 Block 1 Lot 4 Rezone Brad Mueller Consent
Public Hearing Tract B Weld County Business Park PUD, 1st Amendment Brad Mueller Regular
Strategic Housing Plan Progress/Update (non‐action) Ben Snow Regular
Municipal Code Recodification ‐ Review of Changes Cheryl Aragon 0.75
Results of HRC Meeting and Cultural Awareness Training Becky Safarik 0.50
Resolution ‐ Naming of Stampede Stage Andy McRoberts Consent
Appointment/Resolution ‐ Subcommittee to Discuss Evaluation of Employees that Report to Council Maria Gonzales‐Estevez Consent
Ordinance ‐ Intro ‐ Municipal Code Recodification Cheryl Aragon Consent
Ordinance ‐ Intro ‐ Marketplace Rezone Brad Mueller Consent
Ordinance ‐ Intro ‐ Code Updates regarding Short Term Rentals Brad Mueller Consent
Ordinance ‐ Stoneybrook Subdivision Rezone Brad Mueller Regular
Stoneybrook Subdivision Preliminary PUD Brad Mueller Regular
Quarterly Financial Report (non‐action) Robert Miller Regular
Discussion of Development Impact Fees Robert Miller 1.00

Resolution ‐ Northeast All Hazards Region 2020 Grant Award Robert Miller Consent
Resolution ‐ IGA with Weld County for the Coordinated Election Cheryl Aragon Consent
Ordinance ‐ Intro ‐ Ballot Measures for Tax Renewals Robert Miller Consent
Ordinance ‐ Final ‐ Municipal Code Recodification Cheryl Aragon Regular
Ordinance ‐ Final ‐ Marketplace Rezone Brad Mueller Regular
Ordinance ‐ Final Code Updates regarding Short Term Rentals Brad Mueller Regular
Impact Fee Study Robert Miller 1.00
Resource Overview for the 2021 Budget & 2021‐2025 Capital Improvement Program Robert Miller 1.00

August 4, 2020 Council 
Meeting

August 11, 2020 
Worksession Meeting

August 18, 2020 
Council Meeting

August 25, 2020 
Worksession Meeting

City Council Meeting Scheduling
Current as of 7/17/2020

This schedule is subject to change

July 21, 2020 Council 
Meeting

July 28, 2020 
Worksession Meeting

141



1 7/15/2020 8:52 AMCouncil Master Calendar

SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa
1 2 3 4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11
12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29 30 31

July 2020
SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa

1
2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30 31

August 2020July 20, 2020 - 
July 26, 2020
Monday, July 20

Wednesday, July 22

Friday, July 24

Tuesday, July 21
6:00pm -  City Council Meeting (Council's Chambers, 1001 11th 
Avenue)

Thursday, July 23

Saturday, July 25

Sunday, July 26

142



2 7/15/2020 8:52 AMCouncil Master Calendar

SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa
1 2 3 4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11
12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29 30 31

July 2020
SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa

1
2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30 31

August 2020July 27, 2020 - 
August 2, 2020
Monday, July 27

11:30am - 12:30pm Greeley Chamber of Commerce (Hall)
6:00pm - 7:00pm Youth Commission (Butler)

Wednesday, July 29
7:00am - 8:00am Upstate Colorado Economic Development 
(Gates/Hall) (Upstate Colorado Conference Room) - Council Master 
Calendar

Friday, July 31
11:30am - 12:00pm Bellvue WTP's New Treatment Building Grand 
Opening (4505 Filter Plant Road, Bellvue, CO ) - Council Master 
Calendar

Tuesday, July 28
6:00pm - 9:00pm City Council Worksession 
(https://zoom.us/j/508162666) - Jessica Diagana

Thursday, July 30

Saturday, August 1

Sunday, August 2

143



3 7/15/2020 8:52 AMCouncil Master Calendar

SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa
1

2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30 31

August 2020
SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa

1 2 3 4 5
6 7 8 9 10 11 12

13 14 15 16 17 18 19
20 21 22 23 24 25 26
27 28 29 30

September 2020August 3, 2020 - 
August 9, 2020
Monday, August 3

Wednesday, August 5

Friday, August 7

Tuesday, August 4
6:00pm -  City Council Meeting (Council's Chambers, 1001 11th 
Avenue)

Thursday, August 6
7:00am -  Poudre River Trail (Hall)
3:30pm -  IG Adv. Board (Butler)
6:00pm -  MPO (Gates/Payton)

Saturday, August 8

Sunday, August 9

144



4 7/15/2020 8:52 AMCouncil Master Calendar

SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa
1

2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30 31

August 2020
SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa

1 2 3 4 5
6 7 8 9 10 11 12

13 14 15 16 17 18 19
20 21 22 23 24 25 26
27 28 29 30

September 2020August 10, 2020 - 
August 16, 2020
Monday, August 10

Wednesday, August 12

Friday, August 14

Tuesday, August 11
6:00pm - 9:00pm City Council Worksession 
(https://zoom.us/j/332065143) - Jessica Diagana

Thursday, August 13

Saturday, August 15

Sunday, August 16

145



5 7/15/2020 8:52 AMCouncil Master Calendar

SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa
1

2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30 31

August 2020
SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa

1 2 3 4 5
6 7 8 9 10 11 12

13 14 15 16 17 18 19
20 21 22 23 24 25 26
27 28 29 30

September 2020August 17, 2020 - 
August 23, 2020
Monday, August 17

Wednesday, August 19
2:00pm - 5:00pm Water & Sewer Board (Gates)

Friday, August 21

Tuesday, August 18
6:00pm -  City Council Meeting (Council's Chambers, 1001 11th 
Avenue)

Thursday, August 20
7:30am - 8:30am DDA (Zasada/Butler)
3:30pm - 4:30pm Airport Authority (Clark/Payton)

Saturday, August 22

Sunday, August 23

146



Council Agenda Summary 

July 21, 2020 

Agenda Item Number 17

Title 

Consideration of a motion authorizing the City Attorney to prepare any required 

resolutions, agreements, and ordinances to reflect action taken by the City Council at 

this meeting and at any previous meetings, and authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk 

to sign all such resolutions, agreements and ordinances 

Council’s Recommended Action 

A motion to approve the above authorizations. 

147



Council Agenda Summary 

July 21, 2020 

Agenda Item Number 18

Title 

Adjournment 

148


	Agenda Index
	Item No. 1
	Item No. 2
	Item No. 3
	Item No. 4
	Item No. 5
	Item No. 6
	Item No. 7
	Item No. 8
	Consent Agenda - Item Nos. 9 - 10
	Item No. 9
	Item No. 10
	Item No. 11
	Item No. 12
	Item No. 13
	Item No. 14
	Item No. 15
	Item No. 16
	Item No. 17
	Item No. 18



